TOWNSHIP OF MORRIS
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 25, 2019
Call to Order
The regular meeting of the Township of Morris Board of Adjustment was called to order on Monday
evening, March 25, 2019, at 7:35 P.M. in the Municipal Building, 50 Woodland Avenue, Township of
Morris.
Statement of Adequate Notice
Chairman Kronk issued the following:
“I hereby announce and state that adequate notice of this meeting was provided by the Secretary of this Board of
Adjustment by preparing a notice dated March 20, 2019 specifying the time, date and place of this meeting, posting
such notice on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building; filing said notice with the Clerk of the Township of Morris;
forwarding the notice to the Morris County Daily Record and the Morris News Bee, and forwarding, by mail, the said
notice to all persons on the request list, and I hereby hand a copy of such notice to the Secretary of the Board of
Adjustment for inclusion in the minutes of this meeting, all of the above actions being in accordance with N.J.S.A.
10:4-6, et seq., Open Public Meetings Act.”

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Timothy Kronk, Chairman
Roll call of Board Members and Professionals
Members Present
Mr. Timothy Kronk, Chairman
Mr. Lee Goldberg
Ms. Samantha Rothman
Mr. Donnell Williams
Mr. Paul Woodford
Mr. Paul Staudt
Mr. John Christensen
Mr. George Quillan, Alternate #1
Mr. Jeremiah Loughman, Alternate #2
Members Absent
None
Also Present
Mr. Richard Oller, Board Attorney
Mr. Paul Phillips, Township Planner
Mr. James Slate, Township Engineer
Ms. Jenny Mantek, Asst. Board Secretary
Professionals Absent
Ms. Sonia Santiago, Board Secretary
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Consideration for approval of minutes of the February 25, 2019 regular meeting.
On motion duly made by Mr. Williams, seconded by Mr. Staudt, and unanimously carried, the minutes of
the February 25, 2019 meeting were approved as circulated and placed on file in the office of the Board
of Adjustment.
Public Hearings
Ms. Rothman recused herself from the following application.
Mr. Quillan was seated.
Certified shorthand reporter present for the following application
See attached transcript.
BA-12-18
Block 204, lot 15, 14 Burnham Road, B-11 zone, Section C & D.

Korner Store, Inc.

Applicant seeks a use variance to add two residential apartments above the existing store building, as
well as other site improvements.
Proof of Publication and Affidavit of Service filed and approved by the Board Secretary and Board
Attorney.
Mr. David B. Brady, attorney for the applicant entered his appearance and presented the application to
the Board.
The following professionals being sworn in by the Board Attorney appeared to be heard.
James Maietta, Co-owner
Richard Schommer, Professional Engineer
Lynn Williams, Professional Architect
Ken Nelson, Professional Planner
The following exhibits were submitted as evidence during testimony.
A-1 Parking Count performed by Mr. Maietta
A-2 Photo Board consisting of 3 photos showing Building and Billboards
A-3 Colorized Site Plan Sheet 3 dated 3/25/2019
A-4 Colorized Exterior Elevation Sheet
A-5 4 paged packet, containing 7 photographs showing Neighborhood and Site
Summary of Testimony – James Maietta, Co-owner
Mr. Maietta explained that his parents have owned the Korner Store and property since 1966, and that
he has been working there since 1973. He co-owns it with his sister 50/50. He is there every day, and
they sell breakfast, lunch, takeout, lottery tickets, newspaper, candy, and soda. It is 90% take out
versus stay in. Mr. Maietta continued to state that we are open 6 am-8 pm weekdays, and on Saturday
and Sunday are open from 6 am-1 pm. There are 3 employees: himself, his sister and his mother-inlaw. Mr. Brady introduced exhibit A-1: a parking count done by Mr. Maietta. Mr. Maietta performed the
count during his busiest hours, between 6am and 1pm, every half hour, on Sunday, March 10th,
Wednesday, March 13th, Friday, March 15th and Monday, March 18th. The parking lot was never full or
near full. Parking has never been a problem. Mr. Maietta stated he does not have any proposal to
upgrade the interior of the store.
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Mr. Woodford asked if landscaping trucks parked in the street. Mr. Maietta stated he hasn’t observed
where they park. There were no landscapers when he did the count.
The meeting was opened to the public for questions of the witness; no one appeared to be heard.
Public portion closed at 7:48 pm
Summary of Testimony – Mr. Rusty Schommer, Professional Engineer
Mr. Schommer stated that the property is in the B-11 zone at the intersection of Fairchild Road and
Burnham Road. It has frontage on both of those roads and is an undersized lot as it exists today. Mr.
Schommer used exhibit A-3, a Colorized Site Plan dated 3/25/2019 (rendered sheet 3 that also shows
landscaping), to orient the Board with the layout of the property. It is an L shaped lot, with frontage on
Fairchild and shorter frontage on Burnham Road. To the north of Fairchild Road is the OSGU zone,
where the Fairchild Firehouse is located. To the western boundary is the zone line for the RA-7 zone.
That zone continues further to the west. The lot has frontage of about 53 feet on Burnham Road, and
128 feet on Fairchild Road. The required setbacks for this zone and the building envelope make the
actual building envelope a small sliver because of the shape and dimensions of the property. The
property has the one story commercial building, the Korner Store. Mr. Schommer referred to Exhibit A-2,
a Photo Board consisting of 3 photographs, stating that the photos show the building and also the
billboards that are on top of that building that are 20 feet long and 12 feet in height sitting several feet
above the roof line. The store front faces toward Burnham Road. The pictures also show how it is all
pavement surrounding the store up to the building. There is drop curb or no curb; along the frontage on
both Fairchild and Burnham, it is not a formal parking situation. The bottom photo shows the view from
Hanover Ave and the purpose is to show how you can see the building and the billboards from Hanover
Ave. Back to Exhibit A-3, you can see from Fairchild Road and Burnham Road it is pavement from
those roads up to the buildings. It is a one story commercial building, with a one story accessory garage
structure used for storage. The site topography is level, with no existing drainage features on the
property, and there are no significant environmental concerns. We will add a new drainage, an inlet with
the drywell to collect runoff from the site; it will be an improvement over current conditions.
There are number of existing nonconformities with respect to the property. The lot area required is
11,250 square feet, and we have 9,151 square feet. The lot width on Burnham Road is substandard;
the lot width is 53 feet where 75 feet are required, the lot depth is a little more than 83 feet where 100
feet is required. The front yard setback to Fairchild Rd is 13.8 feet where 35 feet is required and from
Burnham Road we are at 19.2 feet, where 35 feet is required. These are all existing conditions. The
garage to the rear has some non-conformities with respect to the side yard setback for an accessory
garage of 8.3 feet where 10 feet is required. The minimum side yard setback combined is 17.2 is feet
where 25 feet is required and the rear yard setback is 5.9 feet, where 25 feet is required. The proposal
is to construct a 2nd story addition for residential use to create two two-bedroom apartments. The
existing footprint stays the same. In order for the apartments to be of sufficient size, we are proposing
an overhang of 2 feet to get the width needed for the size of the units. The first floor stays the same;
there is no proposal to change the existing commercial operation. The store front will stay the same.
The two billboards will go away, and no new billboards will be added. As part of the addition for the
residential use, there will be a small addition at the back as an entry to the second floor separate from
the commercial use. That is an expansion of 2 feet into the side yard.
The current parking is not structured or formalized. There is no delineation of parking spaces, walkways
or landscaping. As part of the improvements, we will formalize the parking with striping, an ADA
accessible parking space, and walkways created from the corner of Fairchild Road and Burnham Road.
There will be decorative bollards placed in front of the building to keep cars from pulling too far forward
to protect the pedestrian walkway that will be created. There is nothing but pavement in the front; we will
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create a small landscaped area with some planting and a tree to help the appearance of the site. At the
rear of the building we will add landscaping, formalize the parking, create a walkway to access the
residential units, and create a formal two way access to the parking in front of the garage. The garage
will only be for storage use. We are resurfacing the parking lot in the back. We will create a landscape
buffer along the western border. The grass area will be reduced from about 10 feet wide to 5-7 feet
wide, but we will enhance it with landscaping by planting shrubbery along the common property line to
act as buffer and a screen between the adjacent properties. We will formalize access to the site, and
construct depressed curb along the Fairchild Road frontage to delineate between the pavement on site
and off site. The dumpster will be in an enclosure in the back with a solid fence and a gate, on a
concrete pad adjacent to the building. A couple of parking spaces will be created in front of the garage;
we will take away some gravel areas around the garage and add some lawn areas. We will put lights on
the side of the building; these will be new LED downcast fixtures, and one in front by the awning, 10 feet
off of the ground.
Mr. Schommer continued to state that the proposal results in some variances. The addition of the
second story and overhang results in the need for setback relief from Fairchild Road where there is
currently 13.8 feet; it will go down to 11.8 feet. On the south side of the building adjacent to the other
commercial building, the overhang will be 9.2 feet and the addition on the back will be 9.2 feet from the
property line, where 10 feet is required. Formalizing the parking area results in an increase in
impervious coverage of 76%, where 75 % is permitted. To help mitigate the impacts from impervious
coverage we will provide drainage relief on site. The net result is that there will be less run off from the
site than currently. The dumpster on the corner will be at the property line, with a 0 foot setback. There
is pavement running onto the neighbor’s property. The buffer on the west side requires a relief where 10
feet are required and we are going to be at 5-7 feet but we are enhancing that with the new landscaping.
The parking spaces on Burnham Road will be 9x18 feet and on the side by Fairchild Road will be 9x20
feet; where the ordinance requires 10x20 feet. We commonly use those size spaces and request relief
for this.
Mr. Kronk asked what is stored in the garage. Mr. Schommer stated it is miscellaneous storage items
for the applicant’s operations. Mr. Kronk asked if there was a reason the area on the east side of the
garage needs to remain paved. Mr. Schommer stated that it is used commonly with the adjacent
property, and we didn’t want to interfere with the access in that area. Mr. Kronk asked if other locations
were looked at for the garbage enclosure. Mr. Schommer responded that we wanted it to be easily
accessible so that the garbage or recycling trucks have easy access to the front, and this is a good
orientation and layout for it, and to allow for other parking spaces. Mr. Kronk asked Mr. Schommer if he
had looked at the north side of the garage. Mr. Schommer stated regarding the area by the garage, they
are trying to keep open for common access and circulation. Mr. Kronk expressed that the concern is the
setback of 0 feet and its proximity to the proposed residential access. Mr. Brady stated that the
applicant is willing to take up some of the pavement by the garage, and is willing to relocate the refuse if
needed.
Mr. Quillan asked where the entrances to the garage where and if it was for cars. Mr. Schommer
responded that the garage door is facing Fairchild Road but there is no intention it will be used for cars,
and that the owners of the other commercial property do not use the garage.
Mr. Goldberg asked Mr. Schommer to confirm that the vestibule in the back does add to the footprint on
the ground, and that is the only place it does. Mr. Goldberg asked about residential parking and Mr.
Schommer responded that they do not anticipate residential parking in the front. The two spaces in the
back and nearest to the door will most likely be used by the residents, but the spaces will not be
assigned.
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Mr. Schommer stated that in terms of parking there are around currently 12-14 parking spaces. We are
required to have 14 based on the ordinance requirements for both commercial and residential use, but
we have 15. There is a typo on the plans stating there are 14 but we do have 15 spaces.
Mr. Woodford asked if there was a problem with the parking spaces going into the Right of Way. Mr.
Schommer stated that is the way the parking has been for decades. The parking extends into the ROW
and we cannot fix it. We have discussed it with Mr. Slate and at the TCC meetings, and it is functioning
well with no issues so we propose to continue having these parking spaces.
Mr. Kronk asked if there were any plans to widen Fairchild Road. Mr. Slate stated Burnham Road was
reconstructed recently and we extended the curb around the radius on Fairchild Road; the curb line is 28
foot in width. That is standard for residential roadways with parking on one side. There was discussion
early on when we were considering the plans for reconstruction of Burnham Road because of the store
locations. Both the Korner Store and the store next to it have always functioned that way. We leaned
away from a sidewalk and apron as it could interfere with the parking that has existed there for a long
time, and we maintained the asphalt in that area. When we finish improvements on Fairchild Road we
will hold that 28 foot width. The similar situation exists on the sidewalk opposite on the side of Fairchild
Road. There is no formalized sidewalk network in the rest of that neighborhood.
Mr. Oller asked if you eliminate the pavement on the east side of the garage, does that eliminate the
impervious coverage variance. Mr. Schommer stated that it would.
Mr. Woodford asked if there would be walkway or access to the garage. Mr. Schommer stated no, as it
is not intended for use on a regular basis; it will be lawn area.
Mr. Slate asked regarding the garage, it looks like it is in need of repairs, are any improvements
proposed. Mr. Schommer stated not at this time. Mr. Slate asked if the garage could ever be used for
residential use. Mr. Schommer stated that the garage could not be used for residential use.
Mr. Phillips asked if the residential parking will be assign. Mr. Schommer stated it was on intended to be
assigned. It would make sense to assign the 2 closest to the garage for residential. The applicant
agrees that they could be assigned with signage.
The meeting was opened to the public for questions of the witness; no one appeared to be heard.
Public portion closed at 8:26pm
Summary of Testimony – Lynn Williams, Architect
Ms. Williams described the proposal and referred to the floor plans, page Z-1, previously submitted with
the application. We are proposing a one story addition over the existing one story Korner Store. The
addition will have two apartments with a common stairwell; the Korner Store will remain as is, where the
public entrance is in the front, and the service entrance at the rear. The two apartments will each be 970
square feet, modest in size, with 2 bedrooms and 1 bathroom each, with an open plan living room, and
an eat in kitchen. There is a proposed 2 foot overhang over the long sides of the existing building. The
reason is to achieve enough width to actually have functional units. The existing building is quite long
and narrow; it doesn’t lend itself to a very efficient floor plan. We lose a lot of space to the long hallway
in order to have access to rooms than can have windows. The other reason is that we need a certain
number of stairs as the Korner Store is of a certain height. We have a limitation of the existing service
entrance and setbacks, and we need the landings safe and usable. We have a covered access to the
stairs. There will not be stairs hanging on the side of the building, they will be enclosed.
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Ms. Williams used Exhibit 4, the Elevation Sheet dated 3/25/2019. It is Sheet Z-2 in the submitted plans,
colorized to give an indication of materials we will use. We are trying to create two separate identities for
the uses of the building. For the Korner Store we are retaining the original awning and signage to
establish a strong retail identity at the front. On the Fairchild Road elevation, we have a separate
identity for the residential entrance with railings, a porch, and vinyl siding material to tie into a more
residential character. The existing Korner Store is a brick structure with a stucco finish and the front has
a painted brick finish. We are utilizing a more residential character on the upper level and that is to tie
into the residential scale and character of the neighboring buildings and homes in the area. We are
proposing a gable pitched roof, double hung windows with divided lights, trim boards, brackets and
features like that which lends some character and scale to the building We have cross gables in a
couple of locations along the side and at the rear to add some visual interest to the façade. In terms of
the colors, we are utilizing the different contrasting materials to break down the scale but also tying
together color wise so it reads as a whole. A light sand color is proposed for the lower level and a
deeper color is proposed for the upper level. We are picking up on the green accents of the existing
awning with our window color and some of our doors, and the proposed trim color is cream. The roof is
asphalt shingles, medium tone grayish brown. There will not be billboards on the roof anymore. The
proposed building will be close to the height of the current billboards.
Mr. Woodford asked where the storm runoff will go with the new roof. Mr. Schommer responded that it
will be directed into the leaders and then into the proposed drywell. Currently there is no drywell and the
storm water runs onto the parking lot.
Mr. Goldberg asked if the intention was to refinish the exterior of the building. Ms. Williams responded
yes, it’s not in good conditions, and the alley way between the 2 stores will have recesses in the façade,
they are formerly windows that have been blocked in. Mr. Goldberg also noted that in the alleyway there
is an exhaust servicing the kitchen area downstairs located under a residential window. Ms. Williams
stated that they were intending to leave it, and that it projects pretty far off the building, and I don’t think
it can be relocated.
Mr. Quillan requested clarification on the stairs. Ms. Williams stated that we need 17 stairs from
entering the building to go up. The limitations are we need a certain amount of space to get in the door
and stand close the door behind you, then get up the stairs, a minimum landing width by code, and then
at the top of the stairs we don’t want to be right at the doorway with a stair, that wouldn’t be safe. We
have 16 inches offset of the first step. It’s a function of how high the risers are, how wide the treads are
plus how big the landing areas have to be. All is dictated by the building code; it quite tight on this site.
There is an existing gas meter and an existing door which limits where the stairs can be added to the
back of the building.
Mr. Goldberg asked where the furnaces would be located, and Ms. Williams responded that there is attic
space where the residential units can locate their furnaces. The Korner Store has a full basement where
they have their equipment.
Mr. Williams requested more information on the additional lighting. Ms. Williams stated that there will be
a ceiling fixture on the porch, two fixtures on the Fairchild Road side, one in the back for parking area,
one in the front; they would be shielded lights, LED and all very controlled. Mr. Slate asked if the
applicant would be willing as a condition of approval that the lighting would be aesthetic lighting similar to
what the architect has shown and the applicant agreed. Ms. Williams also stated that the idea is that the
building will all be painted stucco on the side, to have a consistent finish. Mr. Slate asked will existing
overhead service needed to be upgraded, and if so would the applicant be willing to put it underground
rather than overhead. Ms. Williams stated she did not know if it would need to be upgraded but the
applicant will upgrade it if needed and the wires will be run underground. Mr. Slate also confirmed with
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the applicant that he will put on a coat of paint keeping in the color scheme of the building and same
color scheme for dumpster and enclosure.
Mr. Phillip stated that there is a disconnect between the first and the second floor and that it is a
dilemma from a practical standpoint, and asked Ms. Williams as an architect if there is anything else she
could do to dress up the façade on the first floor. Ms. Williams stated that this type of separation of
stories is kind of historical for homes built in the 1920-30’s and it’s kind of consistent with the age of the
surrounding neighborhood. The trim board and brackets help a lot. When cars are parked in front of the
building, you will not see the bottom part of the wall and a lot of the attention is put on the upper part of
the building. Mr. Phillips expressed his concern for lack of fenestration.
The meeting was opened to the public for questions of the witness; no one appeared to be heard.
Public portion closed at 8:51pm
Testimony – Kenneth Nelson, Professional Planner
Mr. Nelson testified that he visited the site and neighborhood on several occasions, and that he has
reviewed the 1994 Master Plan and 2017 Re-examination report. He is familiar with the B-11 zone
requirements and has reviewed Mr. Phillip’s report. The property is in a small B-11 district. Mr. Nelson
submitted and reviewed Exhibit A-5, which consist of a series of photographs showing the neighborhood
and site. The first picture shows the subject property with the billboards. The second sheet has 2
photographs showing a portion of the residential area on the west side of Fairchild and the second
picture shows the B-11 zone on the south side of Burnham Road. The third page shows the Fairchild
firehouse on the corner of Burnham Road and Fairchild Road, and the second picture shows the B-11
zone and commercial uses on the south side of Burnham Road. The last page has two pictures showing
the front and rear of the property. The property is surrounded by the R-7 zone which is a single family
residential. The B-11 zone allows all conditional uses permitted in any residential zone. One of the
conditional uses in the R-7 zone is referred as a supplementary apartment. Mr. Nelson continued to
state that what we are proposing is a residential component that would have two units. The property is
in close proximity to Morris Plains and Hanover Avenue, and the billboards are visible from Hanover
Avenue. The zoning reflects what the existing land development pattern is in the area. It is a corner lot,
and the current use is a neighborhood store. It has been there for many decades. We want to bring it
from the 1960’s into the 21st century. The existing commercial use is not high intensity, and the parking
for the commercial and residential can be easily accommodated on site. The proposal seeks to add 2
two-bedroom apartments, is very much in keeping with something mentioned in your most recent Master
Plan Re-examination Report. Mr. Nelson summarized part of it from page 45 of the report under the
heading “Changes in Housing Preference”, stating how Baby Boomer and Millennial demographics are
trending away from traditional large lots single family housing. A variety of housing types are also being
built as part of new mixed used developments in order to respond to this trend. The last two sentences
read “although the Planning Board anticipates that the Township will remain a predominantly single
family detached home community it must still be cognizant of these changing housing preferences, and
as such should look for opportunities to promote diversity in the Township’s housing stock where
appropriate”. Mr. Nelson continued that this is a small project but in my opinion it is on track with what is
mentioned in your re-examination report.
This building is an attractive building and is a major improvement over what is there. The 2 overhangs
add an attractive feature to the building, and the brackets also add to the architectural interest of the
building. The overhangs create a deficiency, a variance that needs to be addressed in my testimony.
Usually, ‘C’ variances are subsumed in the ‘D’ variance, but the issue of the overhang is an important
factor. From what I understand, we have eliminated the one variance in terms of coverage. With
respect to the D1 variance, the argument to be made is that the proposal advances purposes of zoning.
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In my opinion there are 4 that are specifically advanced. The site is suited to accommodate these 2
apartments. It is a one story building, and the apartments can be accommodated by a vertical
expansion, with a small increase in the footprint of the building. The proposal is a vertical expansion of
the building. The location makes this property suited for the use, because it is immediately adjacent to a
single family residential area which can accommodate a second apartment if a property owner so
chooses. These two apartments are consistent with the R-7 zone. It is a convenient location for
someone wanting to live in a small residential building. But being in the location where they can access
mass transit and various commercial facilities. It also allows for population density. The two apartments
are modest in size and are consistent with what is located in the surrounding area. This proposal also
provides sufficient space in an appropriate location for this niche type of residential use.
Most
importantly, as a result of this application, the purpose of zoning relating to enhancing the desirable
visual environment, or creating a desirable visual environment is achieved by the design of the building
and most importantly by the removal of the billboards.
Mr. Nelson continued, regarding the negative criterial test, I see very little impact associated with the
project. The impacts are primarily positive. There may be some slight increase in traffic by adding
these two apartments but it is minimal. The intent and purpose of the Master Plan and zone plan is not
impaired for the reasons I have stated in connection with providing an appropriate type of residential use
at this location. With respect to the Medici test, I suspect the B-11 zone is a small zone throughout the
municipality, and if there will be residential uses added to this zone, it is better to do it through the
variance process. Mr. Nelson stated that there is no substantial detriment to the public good or general
welfare.
Mr. Woodford asked if a survey was taken to see how many multi-family houses were within a one block
radius of the property. Mr. Nelson stated he did not. Mr. Maietta stated he is familiar with the
surrounding land uses and to his knowledge there are about 4-5 two-family residences in the
surrounding area.
A discussion was carried between the Board and professionals regarding the billboards how they are a
preexisting nonconforming use and structure.
The meeting was opened to the public for questions of the witness; no one appeared to be heard.
Public portion closed at 9:10pm
The meeting was opened to the public for comments; no one appeared to be heard.
Public portion closed at 9:11 pm.
Mr. Brady provided a summation. We currently have a non-descript block commercial looking building in
a commercial zone adjacent to residential zones. It has on top of it 2 large billboards next to the
residential zone, and I’m sure that the Township would like to discourage or remove them. We are
proposing two modest market rate apartments providing a diversity of housing stock. This reflects the
trend, close to downtown Morris Plains, and close to amenities that you have there. There is walkability,
and significant upgrades in the aesthetic of this building, something that is compatible to the surrounding
areas. As a whole, this is an improvement to the area and provides additional housing stock for the
Town. I would ask that the Board approve it.
A discussion was carried among the Board and professionals; Mr. Oller listed the following conditions of
approval:
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Variance list on sheet 3 needs to be updated
Eliminate the pavement on the east side of the garage to eliminate the impervious coverage
variance.
Relocate the dumpster to an area closer to the garage, based on Mr. Slate exploring relocation
and parking as to where it can go per the Township engineer’s satisfaction
Garage will not be used for residential use
Reserve 2 parking spaces in front of the garage with appropriate signage for residential use
Light fixtures will be modified to reflect something similar to what is on the architects plan
Electrical service will be upgraded if necessary, and if it is it will be run underground
Garage will be repainted to match the color scheme of the building
Dumpster enclosure will match the color scheme of the building, and the applicant will show a
color spec on resubmittal
Remove the exterior vending machine
Wood fence to be around the dumpster
Architect to review the aesthetics of the Fairchild Avenue side of building as recommended by
Mr. Phillips
Mr. Slate stated that the parapet wall appears to be 2 foot tall, the parapet will probably come
down, and requested that the architect provide clarification. The size of the wall will be reduced
and that helps reduce the scale of the existing wall facing Fairchild Avenue. Mr. Kronk
recommended making the band wider/brackets bigger per the satisfaction of Mr. Slate and Mr.
Phillips
Mr. Slate informed the applicant that the Township has an Affordable Housing contribution and
that it is a standard condition.
Lottery dish location will be reviewed per Mr. Slate and Mr. Phillips satisfaction
No outdoor storage of materials

Mr. Williams moved, seconded by Mr. Staudt that approval be granted to the application of the Korner
Store, Inc., thereby permitting on Block 204, Lot 15 the construction of two apartment units and other
related improvements with conditions stipulated and that the Board Attorney be authorized to prepare a
formal resolution memorializing the action taken by the Board, same to be presented for consideration at
the April 22, 2019 meeting.
Roll Call: (Voting Members)
Mr. Goldberg
YES
Mr. Quillan
YES
Mr. Williams
YES
Mr. Woodford
YES
Mr. Staudt
YES
Mr. Christensen
YES
Mr. Kronk
YES
7 Ayes 0 Nays 0 Abstain

Recess was taken at 9:26pm
Resumed 9:33pm
Ms. Rothman was reseated.
Mr. Woodford recused himself from the following application.
Mr. Quillan was seated.
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Certified shorthand reporter present for the following application
See attached transcript.
BA-10-18
Block 5401, Lot 2, 257 Mt. Kemble Avenue, RA-130 zone. Section C & D.

257 Mt. Kemble, LLC

Applicant proposes the development of an 11 unit townhouse project with other related site
improvements. Applicant also seeks a waiver for steep slope disturbance and variances for the front
yard setback and wall height.
Proof of Publication and Affidavit of Service filed and approved by the Board Secretary and Board
Attorney.
Mr. Stephen Geffner, attorney for the applicant entered his appearance and presented the application to
the Board.
The following professional being sworn in by the Board Attorney appeared to be heard.
Asdrubal Franco, Professional Architect
The following exhibits were submitted as evidence during testimony.
A-1 PowerPoint presentation consisting of 8 slides dated 3/25/19
A-2 Scaled Model of development 1:25
A-3 Photo board of Left Entrance
A-4 Photo board of Rearview
Summary of Testimony – Asdrubal Franco, Professional Architect
Mr. Franco started by orienting the Board with an aerial map using Exhibit A-1, a PowerPoint
presentation consisting of 8 slides dated 3/25/19. He stated that our proposal is to build 11 townhouses,
on a 5.5 acre lot, giving each residence ½ of an acre. The townhouses will be built close to the road to
minimize impact on the site, and preserving the majority of the green space in the rear. The 2nd slide is
a rendering of housing and landscaping of the front of the site. Mr. Franco stated that the landscaping
proposed is intended to protect the home to the north of the site and if necessary or required I would be
willing to add more. There will be a curbed concrete wall that is landscaped with terraces and a sign
with the name of the condominiums on the left hand side. This larger sign is in need for a variance, as a
small sign would not be visible for people traveling on Mt. Kemble Ave.
Mr. Franco continued stating the entrance to the site will be replacing an existing 12 foot dilapidated
foundation wall. The wall will be as high as 12 feet, visible from the inside of the property all of the way
down to 0 feet. The 3rd slide shows the typical elevation of townhouses. The driveways will have brick
pavers and will be separated by concrete terraces. The materials we intend to use will be a play
between concrete, wood and dark brick. The brick is intended to continue the historical use of brick in
the area. Slide 4 is a typical view of the rear of the elevation of the units, the predominant view facing
Mt. Kemble Ave. There will be large walk out basements opening to a deck or terrace depending on the
site elevation. There are units proposed parallel to Mt. Kemble Avenue these are units that include the
affordable housing. One of the larger units will be split into two to create the affordable units.
Slide 5 is the landscape proposal; the terraced area to the left of the road will be heavily landscaped.
The purpose of the winding road is to minimize the impact of the site as the site does have some steep
slopes. Another half of the site will be all open space where the woods will be left in the natural state.
We will be removing a lot of dead and damaged trees, and planting approximately 172 trees and shrubs,
and focusing on screening neighbors to the north and the south. We also have a large wall heavily
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landscaped to provide privacy for the neighbors to the south. The lower units front elevation will be
facing the interior of the property and the rear elevation will be directed straight south into Mt. Kemble
avenue. The upper units are slightly skewed southeast so they are not looking directly into the
neighbor’s property. The front view will be facing directly into the woods. Mr. Franco referred to exhibit
A-2, a model with a scale of 1:25, dated 3/25/19, depicting the property boundary showing all of the units
including the market rate and affordable, landscaping, steep slopes along with the canopy along Skyline
Drive that will not be disturbed. The highest height of the walls is 12 feet, winding down to 0 feet. The
12 foot walls cover the distance of approximately 8 feet and 4 feet. It is a minimal distance of 12 feet
total. The existing concrete walls are 12 feet high, and are in pretty bad shape. The intention is to
replace these walls with terraced landscaping; our wall will be further back than the existing wall that is
visible from Mt. Kemble.
Mr. Franco referred to exhibit A-3, the entrance to the proposed site, and exhibit A-4, a photo board of
the rear view of the proposed site. Each unit will have the capability of 3parking spaces, including 1 in
the garage and 2 outside. In addition, there are 6 additional parking spaces on the lower and upper part
as well. We do exceed the parking requirements.
Mr. Franco continued stating that the first floor plan on slide 6 shows the market rate units. The first
cluster which is six units for the market rate units, has 2 floors plus a walk out basement. The size of
each unit is 2800 square feet. There are 2 affordable units, 1600 square feet and 1800 square feet.
They will both have basements, one of them will have a walk out basement and one will not. Mr. Franco
referred to Slide 7 shows the upper cluster of units which are market rate units and each unit is 29003000 square feet, with a walk out basement. It becomes 3 stories, with 2 stories above grade. No
height variances are required. Slide 8 shows the cluster with the market rate units. On the first floor is a
single car garage; the main entrance has a small vestibule, with a powder room and a set of stairs that
connect all floors, Then you walk out into an open space that will have the kitchen, dining room, and
living room with a small terrace outside. The second floor will have the large master suite with a large
walk in closet, a large bathroom and 2 additional bedrooms. We are placing a laundry room and an
additional bathroom on the 2nd floor as well. The basement will have a mechanical area for equipment, a
full bathroom and open space that opens into the terrace or the rear garden.
Mr. Goldberg asked for clarification on parking for the affordable units. Mr. Franco stated that they do
not have a garage, but have spaces marked for them. There is guest parking with one space as ADA
accessible, next to the affordable units as well. The two affordable units will be rental units.
Ms. Rothman asked who will manage the rental units. Mr. Geffner responded that most likely the
developer will manage the units. Ms. Rothman asked regarding the construction of the walls if the
surface of the walls will look modular blocks or a smooth surface. Mr. Franco responded that they prefer
the smooth concrete surface because it is more organic and has more of a sculptural form, but perhaps
some of the area in the back we may use some block. Mr. Franco stated he could bring in samples
during future testimony. Ms. Rothman asked regarding the landscaping plan. Mr. Franco responded
that the plan is to heavily landscape with evergreens, deer resistant plants to maintain the neighbors’
privacy. Most of the remaining landscaping through the lot will be decorative, creating a neighborhood
ambiance. Ms. Rothman asked under the tree replacement schedule, you don’t list the caliper of the
trees that you are going to be planting. You list what their height and their spread and what they’ll grow
to, but not the caliper of the specimens, could that be added into the plan and also in the replacement
totals. Applicant agreed to the information to the plan. Also in your replacement totals I noticed that you
are listing Dwarf Alberta, Spruce, Bayberry, American Holly, and Winterberry a number of these that you
are calling trees are actually understory shrubs. You are taking down trees that grow to be 50-60 feet;
it’s a different type of tree. The applicant agreed to do some trees that will grow to become a large
canopy type of tree as well. The applicant should put in more tree replacement to tree replacement
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versus shrubs to trees that would be helpful. Mr. Slate followed up to Ms. Rothman’s comments, that
the replacement trees should be called out by caliper 2 1/2 to three inch and if it’s evergreen, six to eight
feet and that the shrubs do not count as replacement trees. The landscaping needs to be looked at on
those issues. Mr. Franco indicated that as planted, it is a 4-5 year time period pictured on Exhibits 3 and
4. Mr. Franco stated that the trees will be 6-8 feet tall buffer between the neighbor’s property, and that
he will change how that is shown on the plan.
Mr. Phillips asked regarding parking, there are 3 spaces, one of which is ADA for the affordable housing.
Mr. Franco stated there are 2 spaces in front of the affordable units. There are 3 that are common
spaces closest to the affordable units and one of those spaces can be designated for those units. Mr.
State stated that the building department requires the parking spaces to be adjacent to the units,
regardless if they are used or not, and it is worth talking to the building department as they will want to
see the accessible route. Mr. Phillips stated that as discussed in the TCC meeting, given the slope, and
the curve and width of the road, there should be sufficient visitor parking over and above the driveway
parking for the market rate units and any designated parking for the affordable housing units. He asked
Mr. Franco, do you think 3 parallel spaces up top are adequate? Because what you don’t want given the
layout in the roadway is that there be no place for a visitor to park. Mr. Franco responded that each
house will be able to park 3 cars in their space, and there will be 3 empty spaces that visitors can use.
The affordable units will be designated 3 parking spaces for the two affordable units. The applicant
agreed to look further into the parking spaces on the site. Mr. Phillips confirmed that nine units will be
for sale, and two will be rental units, which the developer will retain control of the two units and manage
them as the owner.
Mr. Oller stated that while we are on the parking issue, a condition could be that there will be no storage
in the garage that would prohibit parking. That could be put in the master deed so the garages are
available for parking.
Mr. Slate asked that with a full bathroom in the basement, could it be considered as a bedroom
downstairs which has a potential to increase your parking need. Mr. Franco responded that the
basements are good for entertainment, family gatherings, and events outside. Having bathroom
downstairs is ideal. There are no closets downstairs and a bedroom is not a possibility because there is
no access for windows in the basement. Mr. Oller asked if the applicant would agree to another
restriction in the master deed saying the basement cannot be use for a bedroom. Mr. Franco stated that
he would agree to a condition that the basement cannot be used as a bedroom.
Ms. Rothman asked if a sidewalk would be installed on the front of the property when this is complete.
Mr. Franco stated a sidewalk is not planned but is willing to consider putting one in as a condition of
approval.
The meeting was opened to the public for questions of the witness the following persons appeared to be
heard.
Amanda Willbergh
249 Mt. Kemble Ave.
Public portion closed at 10:27pm
Mr. Christensen moved, seconded by Mr. Quillan and unanimously carried, the Board carried the
application to the May 20, 2019, Board meeting, without further notice.
Other Matters
No other matters to be heard.
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With no further business for consideration by the Township of Morris Board of Adjustment, on motion
duly made, seconded and unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 10:30 P.M.
Respectfully submitted,

Sonia Santiago, Secretary
Township of Morris Board of Adjustment
Approved: April 22, 2019
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CHAIRMAN KRONK: The first public
application is BA-12-18, Korner Store, Inc. Ms.
Mantek, could you please read that application
summary into the record.
MS. MANTEK: This application is
BA-12-18 for Korner Store, Incorporated, block 204,
lot 15, located at 14 Burnham Road, located in the
B-11 zone, section C and D. The Applicant seeks a
use variance to add two residential apartments above
the existing store building, as well as other site
improvements.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Thank you.
Mr. Oller, do we have jurisdiction to proceed with
this application?
MR. OLLER: Yes, Mr. Chairman. The
Applicant has published the notice in proper form,
published it timely and served it on property owners
within 200 feet, so we do have jurisdiction.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay, thank you.
Good evening, Mr. Brady. Welcome.
MR. BRADY: Good evening, Mr.
Chairman, thank you. David Brady of the firm of
Brady and Correale on behalf of the Applicant. I
understand we have half of the meeting tonight. I'll
see if we can move this along expeditiously. As
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indicated -MR. OLLER: Excuse me, Mr. Brady. We
do have a Board Member with a conflict. So we are
going to make a quick switch.
MR. BRADY: That's fine.
MR. OLLER: Just for the record,
indicate you have a comment, your name and why.
MS. ROTHMAN: Great. I have a
conflict.
MR. BRADY: That's all you need to
say.
MS. ROTHMAN: That's right.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: So at this time we
will seat alternate number one, Mr. George Quillan,
in her place.
MR. BRADY: Okay, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Please proceed.
MR. BRADY: Okay. As indicated, I
represent the Korner Store, Inc. The property is at
the intersection of Burnham and Fairchild in the B-11
zone. It's a one-story, block building with a
garage. It currently has the Korner Store operation,
which has been there since the mid '60's. They serve
breakfast, lunch, sell lottery tickets, things of
that nature. On top of the building are two
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billboards, which are about 20 feet wide and 12 feet
tall, and they are non-permitted uses in the zone,
but they have been there, again, since the '60's. The
proposal is to removal the billboards, to add a
second floor to the building, which would contain two
apartments. We are going to put a closed stairwell
in the rear, which would access those two apartments.
Right now there are refuse and recycling containers,
but they are not in an enclosure. We would put
them -- construct an enclosure, and put them in that.
There would be a reconfiguration of the parking. We
would add some landscaping and then miscellaneous
stages, like striping an unstriped parking lot,
adding bollards and things of that nature.
We need both D variances and C
variances. The main variance is that the apartments
are not permitted in the B-11 zone. There are seven
existing nonconformities, which are listed in the
application in the statement. The proposal causes, I
thought it was three new nonconformities, but I read
Mr. Phillips' report today. He found a couple of
extra, but I'll go through them quickly.
One, 75 percent impervious coverage is
allowed. It's currently 73. We are going to go to
76 percent. Two, we currently have on the Fairchild
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and raise your right hand, please?
J A M E S M A I E T T A,
Having been duly sworn, testified under oath as
follows:
MR. OLLER: Would you state your full
name for the record, please, and spell your last
name?
MR. MAITETTA: James Maietta,
M-A-I-E-T-T-A.
MR. OLLER: Thank you, Mr. Maietta.
MR. BRADY: Have a seat.
MR. OLLER: You may be seated.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Maietta, could you
explain to the Board your relationship to the Korner
Store?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes. My parents owned
it since 1966. I started working there in 1973.
We've had it ever since, and trying to keep it going.
MR. BRADY: And with regard to the
company itself, the Korner Store, Inc., are you 100
percent owner or partial owner.
MR. MAITETTA: Fifty percent.
MR. BRADY: Who is the other owner?
MR. MAITETTA: My sister.
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side of the property a setback that is 13.8, where 35
is required. The apartments upstairs, in order to
provide usable apartments, are going to be
cantilevered over the first floor by two feet. So
that gets reduced to 11.8 feet. Similarly, on the
left-hand side, which is next to the liquor store,
that goes from 11.2 feet, which is now compliant, to
9.2.
Mr. Phillips' report points out that
on Fairchild, between this property and the adjacent
residential property, a 10 foot buffer is required.
We are proposing a buffer that ranges from 5 feet to
7 feet with shrubs. The refuse and recycling
container is going to be a zero foot setback from the
adjacent liquor store property, and the parking
spaces are 9 by 18, or 9 by 20, whereas the
municipality requires 10 by 20.
I have with me tonight Jim Maietta,
who owns the property and runs the store; Rusty
Schommer, who is our engineer; Lynn Williams, who is
our architect; and Ken Nelson, who is our planner.
And unless the Board has some questions, at this
point I'll ask Mr. Maietta to come up.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: No, please proceed.
MR. OLLER: Would you remain standing
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MR. BRADY: You are fully familiar,
obviously, with how the store works?
MR. MAITETTA: Yes.
MR. BRADY: Are you there everyday?
MR. MAIETTA: Everyday.
MR. BRADY: Can you tell the Board a
little bit about what you do there?
MR. MAIETTA: We serve breakfast,
lunch, a lot of take-out, lottery tickets,
newspapers, candy, soda, and that's about it.
MR. BRADY: In terms of, you said, "a
lot of take-out". What do you think the breakout is
between take-out and stay-in?
MR. MAIETTA: About 90 percent.
MR. BRADY: Ninety percent?
MR. MAIETTA: Ninety percent take-out.
MR. BRADY: What hours are you open?
MR. MAIETTA: Six to eight during the
week, Saturday and Sunday we are open six to one.
MR. BRADY: Do you have any employees?
MR. MAIETTA: Total of three.
MR. BRADY: Okay. And who would that
be?
MR. MAIETTA: Me, my sister and my
mother-in-law.
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MR. BRADY: Totally family operated?
MR. MAIETTA: Totally family operated.
MR. BRADY: There was a request during
our TRC that a parking study or a count be done. Did
you undertake that on your own?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes.
MR. BRADY: I'm going to mark this,
Mr. Chairman, as A-1, with tonight's date, which is
the 25th of March.
(Exhibit A-1, Parking Count performed by Mr.
Maietta, is received and marked as an exhibit.)
MR. BRADY: Do you recognize that?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
MR. OLLER: Would you just describe
what that is for the record, please?
MR. BRADY: Would you describe what it
is?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes. This is the count
of how many cars came in my parking lot between my
busiest hour, which are like six to one. I have a
total of about 100 cars between 6 to 1. After that
it's kind of just -MR. BRADY: Mr. Chairman, if I may, I
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MR. BRADY: Business drops off?
MR. MAIETTA: Business drops off a
lot.
MR. BRADY: Okay. And what did you
do? What do these numbers represent?
MR. MAIETTA: Well, I counted cars
between like, on one day six to six-thirty, and I got
like two cars. Then I just kept counting every half
hour how many cars were coming in.
MR. BRADY: So is that the number of
cars that came in?
MR. MAIETTA: It's the number of cars
that came in.
MR. BRADY: Not the number that's
actually parked at any one time?
MR. MAIETTA: No.
MR. BRADY: Did you go out and look at
what was actually parked during this counting period?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes.
MR. BRADY: Did you observe that the
parking lot was ever full or near full?
MR. MAIETTA: No.
MR. BRADY: During your experience
since 1973 at the shop, has it ever been full? Is
that a problem?

Page 11
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

think there is enough copies for everybody, but I am
not sure.
MR. MAIETTA: That's basically people
coming in and going out. Nobody is parking on the
road.
MR. BRADY: Why don't you wait a
minute until everybody has the exhibit? Okay. So
you took this count, personally?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes.
MR. BRADY: And you indicated the
dates that you took it?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes.
MR. BRADY: Okay. So you took it on a
Wednesday, Friday, a Sunday and a Monday?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes.
MR. BRADY: They start at six in the
morning?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes.
MR. BRADY: And run through one in the
afternoon?
MR. MAIETTA: Right.
MR. BRADY: Why did you not do any
counting after one in the afternoon?
MR. MAIETTA: After one there is not
that many customers after that.
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MR. MAIETTA: It's not a problem.
MR. BRADY: Have you ever noticed
whether anybody coming to your store parks on the
street or walks -MR. MAIETTA: No, nobody parks on the
street.
MR. BRADY: Do you have any proposal
to upgrade the interior of the store?
MR. MAIETTA: No.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Chairman, that's all
the questions I have of Mr. Maitetta.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. Thank you.
Board Members, any questions? Yes, Mr. Woodford.
QUESTIONING BY THE BOARD OF MR. MAIETTA:
MR. WOODFORD: You said that no one
parks in the street. What about like landscapers'
trucks or vehicles like that? Do they pull into the
lot?
MR. MAIETTA: They pull into the lot.
MR. WOODFORD: There is room for them
to pull into the lot?
MR. MAIETTA: I don't think there are
many big trucks in there.
MR. WOODFORD: I'm thinking about like
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the trucks with the lawnmowers.
MR. MAIETTA: The big things?
MR. WOODFORD: Yes, with the container
on the back.
MR. MAIETTA: I don't know where they
park, to be honest with you. They could park next
door, maybe. I'm not sure.
MR. WOODFORD: You haven't observed
where they park.
MR. MAIETTA: No. I mean, there was
no landscapers when I did this count, anyway.
MR. WOODFORD: Okay. That's true.
Okay. That's all of the questions I have.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Any other Board
Members? Board professionals, any questions?
MR. SLATE: No questions at this
point.
MR. PHILLIPS: No questions.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. Then at this
time I'll open it up to the members of the public.
Anybody in the public with questions only of this
Witness? Please come forward at this time up to the
podium. Seeing none, hearing none, I close the
public portion. Mr. Brady, your next witness.
MR. BRADY: Thank you. Next I'll call
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that is set forth on the cover sheet to your plan
set.
MR. SCHOMMER: Okay. Sure.
MR. BRADY: Then we can go on to maybe
describing the building itself. I see you have some
pictures up?
MR. SCHOMMER: Correct, okay. So I
won't get to the exhibits on the easel just yet, but
the property is in the B-11 zone. It's at the
intersection of Fairchild Road and Burnham Road, and
it has frontage on both of those roads. The property
contains 9,151 square feet in the B-11 zone. The
minimum lot size is 11,250 square feet. So it is an
undersized lot as it exists today. And I have on the
easel, maybe you want to mark those now?
MR. OLLER: We are up to A-2.
MR. SCHOMMER: Can I mark them both
now and then I'll just describe them?
MR. OLLER: Yes, that's fine.
(Exhibit A-2, Photo Exhibit, Containing
Three Photographs, is received and marked as an
exhibit.)
(Exhibit A-3, Site Plan Exhibit, dated March
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Mr. Schommer.
MR. OLLER: Raise your right hand,
please.
R I C H A R D B. S C H O M M E R,
Having been duly sworn, testified under oath as
follows:
MR. OLLER: Would you state your full
name for the record, please?
MR. SCHOMMER: Richard B. Schommer,
Jr.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Chairman, I know that
Mr. Schommer has testified many times before this
Board.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes. Certainly the
Board will stipulate to Mr. Schommer's qualifications
as we have accepted him on numerous occasions.
MR. BRADY: As an expert in the field
of engineering?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Engineering, yes.
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. BRADY:
MR. BRADY: So I guess to start, Mr.
Schommer, if you could describe the zoning that this
property is in, and what zones are nearby? I think
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25, 2019, is received and marked as an exhibit.)
MR. OLLER: For the record, we are
marking A-2 and A-3. Would you describe A-2?
MR. SCHOMMER: Yes. What I just
marked as Exhibit A-2 is entitled, Photo Exhibit. It
is three photographs. These were taken by our
planner, Ken Nelson, recently, and he'll probably use
them, as well, in his testimony. There are three
photographs of the building and the billboards from a
couple of different angles.
And what I just marked as Exhibit A-3
is entitled, Site Plan Exhibit, with today's date.
And it's a -- it is sort of a combination of the site
plan, grading plan and some of the other plan sheets
that you have. Probably the site plan is the best to
look at to follow along with.
MR. OLLER: What sheet is that?
MR. SCHOMMER: The site plan, which
would be sheet three.
MR. OLLER: Sheet three. So it's
rendered sheet three?
MR. SCHOMMER: Rendered sheet three,
and it also shows some of the landscaping provided on
one of the other sheets.
MR. BRADY: I think before you
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describe the building, Mr. Schommer, could you
explain to the Board what the nearby zones are and
where the zone line runs as compared to the edge of
this lot?
MR. SCHOMMER: So if we look at
Exhibit A-3, just to orient the Board to the
property, Fairchild Road runs up and along the right
hand side, and Burnham Road on the bottom. So the
property is this L-shaped parcel with frontage on
Fairchild Road and a small frontage on Burnham Road.
As I mentioned, it's in the B-11 zone. The B-1 zone
runs along properties fronting on Burnham Road on
this property, the adjacent property, which is -which is a rectangular piece, and further to the
south along Burnham Road, and also on the other side
of Burnham Road.
To the north, on the other side of
Fairchild Road, is the OSGU zone. That's the
Fairchild Fire Company. The western boundary of our
property is also the zone line and properties to the
west are in RA-7 zone, a residential zone. And
further to the -- then that zone continues further to
the west.
So just to give you some brief
description of the property, as I mentioned, it has
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line of the building, also.
The middle photograph is more of the
front of the store. You can see the awning in the
front. The store front, if you will, of the
commercial property really faces toward Burnham Road.
The long side here, as you can see in photograph one
and on the right side of photograph two, that side is
the side that faces Fairchild Road. So looking again
at the middle photograph, you can see the two
billboards on the top, the awning with the small sign
that says, "Korner Store", and then the main
entrance. As I say, the store front which faces
toward Burnham Road.
You can also see in both of the top
picture and the middle picture, you see that's what
around the site is basically all pavement. It's
basically pavement from both Fairchild Road and
Burnham Road, basically right up to the building.
What you see is basically drop curb or no curb all
along the frontage on both Fairchild and Burnham.
And really it's unstructured, not a formal parking
situation, although parking occurs on both the
frontage towards Burnham Road, as you can see in the
middle photograph there is a car head-on toward the
building, and in the top photograph you can see cars
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some frontage on Burnham Road of about 53 feet. It
has about 128 feet of frontage on Fairchild Road.
It's L-shaped as I mentioned. It's pretty narrow in
its depth from Fairchild Road, back from Fairchild
Road, but then the back part is deeper and extends
further back.
If you look at the required setbacks
for the zone and the building envelope for the zone,
what you would see, and you can see this on your plan
as well, the actual building -- available building
envelope is a fairly small sliver. Because of the
shape and dimensions of the property, it's only this
small area that I'm outlining here on the exhibit
(indicating). And that is also shown on the site
plans that you have.
As I mentioned, or as Mr. Brady
pointed out, on the property is the existing Korner
Store building. It's a one-story commercial
building. Looking at Exhibit A-2, these are three
photographs of the property. The top photograph
shows the Korner Store building, a one-story
commercial building, and the two billboards that are
situated on top of that building. They are
approximately 20 feet long and about 12 feet in
height, and then they sit several feet above the roof
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head-on towards the building coming off of Fairchild
Road.
And then just while we are on this
exhibit, looking at the bottom photograph on A-2,
this photograph was taken from Hanover Road. And the
purpose of this is to really show that you can see
the building and you can see the billboards, as well,
from Hanover -- at Hanover Avenue, which is further
to the north.
And then just going back to Exhibit
A-3, again, you can see from Fairchild Road and
Burnham Road, it's basically pavement from those
roads up to the building. As I mentioned, it has the
one-story commercial building. Toward the back of
the property is a small, one-story accessory garage
structure, and that structure is used for storage.
The site is basically flat, level in
topography, and there is no existing drainage
features on the property. It generally drains
towards the adjoining street, but there is no
significant environmental feature to be concerned
about.
There are a number of existing
nonconformities with respect to the property. That's
due to the shape of the property, and some of the
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existing features. As I mentioned, the lot area is
nonconforming, where the B-11 zone requires 11,250
square feet, we have 9,151 square feet. The lot
width of Burnham Road is substandard. It's a little
less than 53 feet where 75 feet is required. The lot
depth, we averaged out the lot depth to a little more
than maybe 83 feet, where 100 is required. The front
yard setback off of Fairchild Avenue to the building
is 13.8 feet, where 35 feet is required as a front
yard setback. And similarly, on Burnham Road the
front yard setback required is 35 feet, and we are at
19.2 feet. These are all existing conditions.
The garage in the rear has some
nonconformities with respect to the side yard setback
for an accessory garage of 8.3 feet where 10 feet is
required. The combined side yard when we incorporate
the garage is also at 17.2 feet versus 25 feet. And
the rear yard setback from the garage to the rear
property line is at 5.9 feet and the rear yard
setback required in the zone is 25 feet. So I just
wanted to outline those for you.
The proposal is to construct a second
story addition onto this building for residential use
to create two, two-bedroom apartments. The existing
building as you see it in terms of its footprint
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thing that are getting removed from the property.
As part of the addition for the
residential use, there will be a small addition at
the back, and that's really for access into those
units. There will be an entry at the back at the
stairway to go up to the -- up to the second floor,
separate from the commercial use.
MR. BRADY: That is an expansion into
the two feet into the side yard; correct?
MR. SCHOMMER: That is correct.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
MR. SCHOMMER: That lines up with the
overhang, actually, at that location, and I'll
mention the variances in a minute.
As I mentioned, the parking right now
is really unstructured, unformalized. There is no
striping. There is no delineation of parking spaces.
There is no formal walkways. There is really no
landscaping on the Fairchild Road/Burnham Road side.
So as part of these improvements, we will formalize
all of that and we will make improvements. The
parking spaces on both Fairchild Road and Burnham
Road will be formalized with striping. There will be
an ADA accessible parking space created at the front.
There will be walkways created. From the corner of
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stays the same. So the footprint of the building
does not change. There will be -- in order to have
those apartments be of a sufficient size, and you
will hear from our architect more on this, but in
order to have those units be of a sufficient size, we
needed to get some width. So we are proposing an
overhang of two feet on the Fairchild Road side and
an overhang of two feet on the other side. Again,
you will see from the architect the layout of the
units and the size of the units and why that's
important.
The first floor stays the same, as you
heard from Mr. Maietta. There is really no proposal
to change the operations or the inside of that, of
the existing commercial operation. The front store
front will stay at its current orientation, facing
towards Burnham Road. The two billboards that are
there, those go away. As Mr. Brady said, those are
pre-existing nonconforming conditions not permitted
by the zoning currently, but they have been there for
many, many years. So they are pre-existing,
nonconforming conditions, but those will be removed.
No new billboards. You will see from the
architecture, the roof line, which will be above the
second floor, but those billboards are an important
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Fairchild and Burnham Road there will be walkways
created. Right now there is actually a crosswalk
area across the intersection and along Fairchild
Road. So that will be formalized with a walkway that
comes off of that intersection and the new walkway
on -- in front of the building. There will be
decorative bollards placed in front of the building
to keep cars from pulling too far forward and hitting
the building, and also to protect the pedestrian
walkway that's going to be created across there.
Right now, as you can see from the
photographs there is no -- nothing but pavement in
the front. So we are going to actually take this
opportunity and create a small landscaped area, put
some plantings in there, put a tree in there. We
think that will help the appearance of the site over
what's there today.
At the rear of the building we are
also going to add landscaping, formalize the parking,
create a walkway for the entrance into the access for
the residential units, stripe -- put formal striping
along the parking spaces along that side, and create
a formal, two-way access to a couple of parking
spaces, which will be situated in front of the
garage. The garage will stay, but it will continue
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to be used for storage use only.
So we are creating new pavements,
resurfacing the parking lot, creating new pavement at
the back. Right now there is some grass area, some
gravel area an it is not really all that well
delineated, but we will create delineations between
the pavement, the parking spaces, landscaped spaces.
We are going to create a landscaped buffer along this
western boarder. Right now, and Mr. Phillips points
this out in his report, the grass area that's there
right now is wider than what we are going to have.
Right now it's about 10 feet. We are going to reduce
that to be 5 to 7 feet; 5 feet in this area and 7
feet towards the back. But we are going to enhance
it with landscaping. We are going to plant a row of
shrubbery all along that common property line to act
as a buffer and a screen between this property and
the adjacent property to the west, which as I
mentioned is in a residential zone.
So we are formalizing this parking and
the access to the site. We are going to construct
some additional depressed curb along the Fairchild
Road frontage to delineate between the pavement on
site and that off site. The dumpster, which is going
to be in the back is -- we are creating that, putting
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improvement over the present conditions, and result
in less runoff from the site than occurs today.
The proposal results in some
variances, as you've heard. So certainly the
residential use requires relief, and our planner will
address that and go through all of these in more
detail. The addition of the second story and the
overhang results in the need for setback relief from
Fairchild Road. Where it's currently 13.8 feet, it
will go down to 11.8 feet. On the south side of the
building, adjacent to the other commercial building,
that overhang will be 9.2 feet, and the addition at
the back will be 9.2 feet from the property line,
where 10 feet is required. So that's slightly
substandard.
The reconfiguration of the parking,
formalizing the parking area, creating -- delineating
everything in the back, creating the walkways and
everything results in a slight increase in impervious
coverage. Where 75 percent is permitted, we are
currently at 73 percent, and we are going to be
slightly over that at 76 percent. So just 1 percent
over. And as I just mentioned, to help mitigate the
impacts from increase in impervious coverage, we are
providing some drainage on site, and actually even
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that in an enclosure. Right now there is a dumpster
that sits outside at the back of the building, and
just sits on the pavement. So we will put that in an
enclosure with a solid fence and a gate. That will
be on the new concrete pad located at this location
just adjacent to the building.
As I mentioned, a couple of parking
spaces will be created in front of the garage. We
will add some -- take away some graveled areas and so
forth around the garage, and add some lawn areas
there. So that will be an improvement.
As part of the improvements we are
also going to put some lights on the side of the
building. These will be new LED fixtures, down-cast
type of lights on the side of the building to provide
some lighting along that side, and one in the front
by the awning. Those will be low-lights, only about
ten feet off of the ground. So they will be low and
simply to provide some onsite lighting.
MR. BRADY: Is there currently any
drainage structures on site?
MR. SCHOMMER: There are no drainage
facilities on site, and we are going to be adding a
new drainage, an inlet with the dry well to collect
the runoff from the site. So that will be an
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though the coverage goes up, the net result is that
there will be less runoff from the site in the after
condition than currently.
The dumpster, as mentioned, that will
be at this one corner, will be right at -- right at
the property line. So that's zero setback. And if
you go out there and look at it today, this is
really, although we've shown on the exhibit the gray
area where the pavement is, that actually extends
onto the neighboring property. So really, there is
pavement that runs onto the neighboring property. So
it's less visible in a sense of where the property
lines are and so forth than just from the zero foot
setback.
I mentioned the buffer on the west
side. And as mentioned, that requires a relief.
Where 10 foot buffer is required, we are going to be
at 5 feet or 7 feet, but we are enhancing that with
new landscaping.
Lastly, the parking spaces on the
front on Burnham Road will be at 9 by 18 feet, and on
the side by Fairchild Road it will be 9 by 20 feet,
where the ordinance requires 10 by 20 feet.
I think that pretty much goes through
the site changes.
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MR. BRADY: In your opinion, will the
9 by 18 and 9 by 20 foot spaces operate -MR. SCHOMMER: Yes, we commonly use
those size spaces, and we commonly request relief for
those size spaces from the Township ordinance
requirement. I think that's all I have, Dave, unless
there was anything else?
MR. BRADY: No, I don't have anything
else. You covered everything.
QUESTIONING BY THE BOARD OF MR. SCHOMMER:
CHAIRMAN KRONK: The storage in the
garage, are you familiar with what type of materials
are stored there?
MR. SCHOMMER: I think it's kind of
miscellaneous storage that Mr. Maietta has for either
his operation inside or other sort of miscellaneous
storage, nothing specific.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Is there a reason
that area on the east side of the garage needs to
remain paved?
MR. SCHOMMER: On this side
(indicating)?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes.
MR. SCHOMMER: It's paved today. We
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does touch the recycling pad, we thought that was a
good location for access, given that we wanted to
provide these other amenities. There is a turnaround
area right behind the building for access and to
allow for the cars that would be parked in these two
spaces by the garage, so they could back up and exit.
So we did look at that and played around with it a
fair amount to see how we could lay that out, and we
thought that this was a good layout.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Did you look at the
possibility of between the garage and the two parking
spaces there?
MR. SCHOMMER: When you say, "between
the garage" -CHAIRMAN KRONK: The north side of the
garage, grass area to be receded as needed, yes.
MR. SCHOMMER: This area (indicating)?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes.
MR. SCHOMMER: If we put it in that
area, we would be blocked by the parking space. So
that's the difficulty with that.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Well, the difficulty
where it is right now, it's by the door to the two
proposed residential units, and it's right on the
property line.
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are leaving it that way. It's used kind of commonly
with the adjacent property, and we kind of didn't
want to interfere with the access that kind of occurs
in that area that is going. That is kind of shared
by the neighboring property owner, so we are leaving
it that way for that reason, not to impair the
continuing access to the back of the adjacent
commercial building. But we'll ask.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes, but when you
have a coverage variance, I don't know if that's a
rational justification.
MR. SCHOMMER: Okay. I think we'll
ask that question.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. Did you look
at any other possible locations for the recycling and
garbage enclosure.
MR. SCHOMMER: We did. We played
around with this back area quite a bit. We did want
to provide a couple of parking spaces in the back
area. We wanted it to be easily accessible, so that
when you -- the garbage truck or recycling truck
pulse up, they have easy access to the front of it.
And at the end of the day, it really seemed to be a
good orientation and layout for it. Even though the
back corner does touch, the corner of the property

Page 33
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

MR. SCHOMMER: The access door is on
this side, facing towards Fairchild Road. So it's
not right next to those, so you don't -CHAIRMAN KRONK: I didn't say it's
right next to it, but -MR. SCHOMMER: Right. It's at the
back. I understand. I understand. I just wanted to
point out that there is -- you come into the walkway
and onto a step, and then come into the rear that
way. If we put it here, these two parking spaces
then become difficult, or access to the dumpster
becomes difficult if there are any cars in that
location. Then it's right in front of that building.
There are -- there is a garage door there that makes
access into that building really impossible, although
there is no cars pulling into that.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: That's what I was
going to say. There is a grassed area there, so you
are not pulling cars in.
MR. SCHOMMER: Correct.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: How about shift it a
little down, not directly in front of the garage?
MR. SCHOMMER: In this area
(indicating)?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes, that area in
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front of the garage, down towards the area where you
don't want to remove the pavement.
MR. SCHOMMER: Where we don't want to
remove the pavement?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Maybe something
there.
MR. SCHOMMER: Again, we were kind of
keeping this open for common access and circulation.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Well, if that's going
to be the justification, we need to hear the whole
story about what's happening next door and how it
ties in.
MR. SCHOMMER: We can take a look. I
mean, the concern is the setback.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: The concern is the
setback of zero, and the close proximity to the
proposed residential entrance.
MR. SCHOMMER: Okay, okay.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Chairman, I spoke to
Mr. Maietta. He has no particular objection to
taking up some of that pavement and making it grass
around the garage there. He indicated to me that the
garage is used for miscellaneous storage; sometimes
from the store, sometimes personal things. He owns
the house right where Mr. -- I guess it's to the

Page 36
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

(indicating)?
MR. QUILLAN: Yes.
MR. SCHOMMER: No, I don't believe so.
MR. QUILLAN: And do the owners of the
other commercial property, I guess this goes to
Mr. Kronk's comment as well, do the owners of the
other commercial property next door use that garage,
as well?
MR. SCHOMMER: No, no.
MR. QUILLAN: Thank you.
MR. SCHOMMER: They don't use it, no.
MR. GOLDBERG: I have a question.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes, Mr. Goldberg.
MR. GOLDBERG: I just want to clarify.
I heard you say that there is going to be no change
to the existing footprint, but there was also
discussion about adding that vestibule on that
backside. Does that not count towards the existing
footprint?
MR. SCHOMMER: This does count for the
footprint. I was really thinking of the outline on
the sides, on the two sides. But you are correct.
The addition in the back does add to the footprint on
the ground. That's the only place where it does,
actually.
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north or west. Sometimes he will have a tenant that
wants to store something there. It's a small house.
So it's just miscellaneous things. He would like to
be able to get some access to the garage door and not
have it completely blocked by relocating the refuse
area. But other than that, he has no strong feeling
about taking up some pavement or changing the refuse
location.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. Thank you.
Board Members, any questions? Yes, Mr. Quillan?
MR. QUILLAN: I have a question about
the garage entrances. Where are the entrances on the
garage building?
MR. SCHOMMER: There is a door on this
side facing Fairchild Road.
MR. QUILLAN: Is that a garage door?
It could be used for a car?
MR. SCHOMMER: Yes, yes.
MR. QUILLAN: But there is no
intention to use it for cars in the future?
MR. SCHOMMER: Correct.
MR. QUILLAN: On the side that faces
to the -- what is that, to the east? Are there any
entrances there?
MR. SCHOMMER: On this side
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MR. GOLDBERG: And in terms of the ADA
space that's located in the front, did I hear you
allude to the fact that there will be walkways, so if
residents were parking on the front, or if -- I don't
even know if residential parking would be allowed
there in the front. But if there were, is there a
way to access, to get around the back without having
to walk around the whole periphery of all of the
parking?
MR. SCHOMMER: We don't anticipate
residential parking in the front. We would
anticipate -- we are not proposing to assign
residential spaces to the residents, but the two
spaces to the back and the ones nearest the door
would be the ones most logical to use by the
residents. And you can access from the -- from those
onto the walkway, and then into the building.
MR. GOLDBERG: Thank you.
MR. BRADY: With regard to the spaces
and the layout of the space, Mr. Schommer, in terms
of what I'll call complimentary parking demand, does
this work in terms of engineering and circulation and
all? Because we have a use that runs from nine to
eight -- I'm excuse me, six to eight or six to two,
and then we have a residential use?
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MR. SCHOMMER: Right. I should have
mentioned that in terms of parking there is, right
now, again, it's unstructured. It's hard to say
exactly how many parking spaces there are today;
probably 10, 12, 13, 14 parking spaces, something
along those lines. We are showing 15 parking spaces.
When we do the calculation, based on the ordinance
requirements for both the commercial use and the
residential use, we are required to have 14 spaces.
But we have 15 spaces on the site. And there is a
typo on the plan that actually says 14, but there are
15 spaces on the -- on this plan and on the site plan
as shown. And that's assuming full occupancy by both
of those, in accordance with the ordinance
requirements. Often you see some, I'll say shared
parking during the day. Residents may not be home
and spaces available, but that's -- while that may
happen, that's not even a concern here, because we
have the full complement of parking spaces available
as required by the ordinance.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Any other Board
Members? Yes, Mr. Woodford.
MR. WOODFORD: I'm looking at these
plans and it looks like all of the parking spaces go
into the right away. Is there any problem with that?
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MR. SLATE: No. Burnham Road was
reconstructed recently, and I believe at that same
time we extended the curb around the radius on
Fairchild. But I'm just going to double-check the
width on that. I mean, there were some discussions
early on when we were considering the plans for the
reconstruction of Burnham Road, you know, because of
the existing store location, both the Korner Store
and the store next door has always functioned, you
know, that way. We kicked around the, you know, the
sidewalk and doing an apron, and we leaned away from
that, you know, because we felt it had a potential to
kind of interfere with the parking that's existed
there for a long time. And then we just maintained
the asphalt in that area.
MR. SCHOMMER: On the neighboring
property, just to point out, the neighboring
commercial property, a similar type of parking
arrangement takes place. So you see that in front of
the Korner Store, as well as in front of the adjacent
property.
MR. BRADY: And the neighboring
property is a commercial operation, a liquor store?
MR. SCHOMMER: Yes, yes.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
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MR. SCHOMMER: You are right. They
do.
MR. WOODFORD: That's -MR. SCHOMMER: That's something we
couldn't cure. That's how the parking arrangement
has been for decades, and we propose to continue
that. They do extend. It extends into the
right-of-way, given where the property line is.
That's an existing condition we really can't fix
that's due to the location of the building and the
shape of the property and arrangement of the parking.
We -- we discussed this with Mr. Slate, and discussed
this at the TCC meetings. It's functioning well.
There have been no particular problems that anyone is
aware of with respect to operating in this fashion.
And the turnover, as you heard, most of the
customers, it's take-out. So -- but there have been
no particular issues over the years with that. So we
do propose to continue that. But yes, that's
correct. Your observation is correct.
MR. WOODFORD: I guess my follow-up
would be with Mr. Slate is the propriety of that, not
to put you on the spot.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Any plans to widen
Fairchild.
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MR. SLATE: I'm just checking, and the
curb line on Fairchild Avenue, we have that set at 28
foot road width which is standard for a residential
roadway with parking on one side. So it's not as if
Fairchild is choked off on that side. If we were,
you know -- at some point we will finish off the
improvements on Fairchild and that neighborhood more
to the west, and we would hold that 28 width. We
wouldn't go wider. But the similar situation exists
you know, on the sidewalk right now. There is a
sidewalk on the opposite side of Fairchild where the
firehouse is located. What's in the rest of the
neighborhood, I'm not sure. I don't think there is
really any sidewalks in that neighborhood. There may
be some piecemeal stuff, but it's not a, you know,
formalized sidewalk network. And we really have to
look at the whole neighborhood to see how we would
handle sidewalks.
MR. OLLER: I have a question.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes, Mr. Oller?
MR. OLLER: So Rusty, if you eliminate
the pavement along the east side of the garage, does
it also have the effect of eliminating the impervious
coverage variance?
MR. SCHOMMER: If we take out -- we
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can take out enough, I believe, to eliminate the
impervious coverage variance, yes, and it would hold
to 75 percent, correct.
MR. OLLER: Right. Okay.
MR. WOODFORD: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes, Mr. Woodford.
MR. WOODFORD: Is there going to be
any type of walkway or anything to access the garage,
or is it you just walk across the grass?
MR. SCHOMMER: Just walk across the
grass, because it's not intended for use on a regular
basis. There are no vehicles that go in and out, so
it would just be lawn area there.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Any other Board
Members? Board professionals?
MR. SLATE: Just some follow-up on the
garage. I just looked at it through Google maps
earlier in the day, and it looked like it was in need
of some repairs. I don't know what type or how many
years ago that was taken. Are there any improvements
proposed for the garage.
MR. SCHOMMER: We hadn't proposed any,
no.
MR. SLATE: And I saw there was a
residential-style door on it. It would never be used
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MR. PHILLIPS: Just a thought.
MR. SCHOMMER: We could.
MR. PHILLIPS: It would seem -MR. BRADY: We don't have any
objection to that.
MR. SCHOMMER: Right.
MR. BRADY: I don't think it makes to
assign others, because sometimes they might be used
by customers, sometimes they might be used by
residents. But the two near the garage could be
assigned if the Board wants that.
MR. PHILLIPS: That's why I suggested
it.
MR. BRADY: I assume the Board agrees
with you, Mr. Phillips.
MR. PHILLIPS: It's just a suggestion.
MR. OLLER: So you are talking about
assigning with signage?
MR. SCHOMMER: I'm sorry?
MR. OLLER: Not just assigning it in a
lease, but that there would be signage?
MR. SCHOMMER: I think you put signs
there.
MR. OLLER: Right.
MR. BRADY: Yes.
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for any type of residential use?
MR. SCHOMMER: Correct. Could not be
used for residential use; correct.
MR. SLATE: I have no further
questions at this point.
MR. PHILLIPS: Will the residential
parking be assigned or will it be catch-as-catch-can?
MR. SCHOMMER: It was not intended to
be assigned. We would expect that probably they
would park closer to their entrance to the couple of
spaces by the garage or the couple or few on that
side off of Fairchild is what we would expect. And
that kind of is different than where the access is
for the commercial, which is the front door off of
Burnham Road. So most people wanting to access the
commercial use, will park either right on the four
spaces on Burnham Road, or the ones closest. So
those are the ones used first certainly, and most
commonly, for the commercial use. So we would expect
these would tend to remain open. And that's where we
would expect the residents to park.
MR. PHILLIPS: Would it make sense to
assign the two closest to the garage to the
residential?
MR. SCHOMMER: We --
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MR. SCHOMMER: I am not sure what they
would say yet, but yes, you put some signs their.
MR. PHILLIPS: Nothing further.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Nothing else? Okay.
At this time I will open it up to members of the
public for any questions of the engineer this
evening. Questions only at this time. Please come
forward. Seeing none, hearing none, I close the
public portion.
MR. BRADY: Okay. Thank you,
Mr. Schommer. Next I call Lynn Williams.
MR. OLLER: Could you remain standing
and raise your right hand, please?
L Y N N W I L L I A M S:
Having been duly sworn, testified under oath as
follows:
MR. OLLER: State your full name,
please.
MS. WILLIAMS: My name is Lynn
Williams, and I'm representing Carolyn Young who is
the architect. I work for Carolyn Young. She
couldn't be here tonight.
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY BRADY:
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MR. BRADY: Lynn, could you explain to
the Board your professional and educational
background and your involvement in this project?
MS. WILLIAMS: I've been involved with
the project from the beginning. I am a registered
architect in the State of New Jersey. I have a
masters degree in architecture. I've been practicing
for 30-some years.
MR. BRADY: Have you testified before
boards as an architect in the past?
MS. WILLIAMS: Yes, I have.
MR. BRADY: Have you testified in
front of this Board or Planning Board?
MS. WILLIAMS: Not before this Board,
no.
MR. BRADY: Okay. Mr. Chairman, I
would ask that the Board accept Ms. Williams as an
expert with regard to the architectural plans.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Board Members, any
questions?
MR. QUILLAN: No.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. Certainly, we
will accept you.
MR. BRADY: Thank you. Okay then, if
you would, Lynn, would you describe what the proposal
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units. The existing building is quite long and
narrow, and it doesn't lend itself to a very
efficient floor plan. So we lose a lot of space to
long hallway in order to get access to rooms that can
have windows. So that's one of the reasons why, in
order to achieve usable room sizes, we need to expand
over the building below.
The other reason is the Korner Store
has a certain height. We need to get up to that. So
we need a certain number of stairs. We have a
limitation of the existing service entrance here, and
setbacks here along the side yard, and we have a
certain number of steps we have to have to get up to
this level. So actually, we are kind of at a minimum
in terms of the landings that we provided in order
for them to be, you know, safe and usable. We've
achieved some of the stairs through exterior steps up
to a little porch, which all of this is covered
access, which we believe, of course, is safe for the
people using it.
MR. BRADY: This is not a situation
where you have stairs hanging on the side of the
building?
MS. WILLIAMS: Exactly.
MR. BRADY: It's all enclosed.
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is here from an architectural point of view?
MS. WILLIAMS: I'll walk over there.
MR. BRADY: That's fine. And are you
going to refer to the floor plans first?
MS. WILLIAMS: Yes. That is our sheet
Z-1. That was submitted as part of the application.
MR. BRADY: Okay. So it's the same
exactly as was submitted?
MS. WILLIAMS: Exactly.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
MS. WILLIAMS: As has been stated, we
are proposing a one-story addition over the existing
one-story Korner Store. The addition will have two
apartments, and a common stairwell down to the grade
level. The Korner Store will remain as it is, with
the public entrance at the front and a service
entrance at the rear. The two apartments are each
going to be 970 square feet. So they are modestly
sized. They are two bedrooms, one bathroom, each,
and they have an open plan, living room/eat-in
kitchen common area in each unit. There is a
proposed two foot overhang over the long sides of the
Korner Store along each unit. It will overhang the
existing building. And the reason for that is to
achieve enough width this to actually have functional
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MS. WILLIAMS: We wanted to do
something that actually works for people.
I'm going to switch to the elevation
sheet which we have colored.
MR. BRADY: That we'll have to mark as
an exhibit. We are up to A-4, Mr. Oller.
MR. OLLER: Yes. We are up to A-4.
MR. BRADY: Just put A-4 with today's
date.
MS. WILLIAMS: Okay (indicating).
(Exhibit A-4, Elevation Sheet, Colored
Rendering, is received and marked as an exhibit.)
MR. BRADY: Could you describe for the
record what that is, who prepared it, what date and
obviously it's a colored rendering.
MS. WILLIAMS: Right. This is our
sheet Z-2. We colored it today in order to give an
indication of what the materials look like together.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
MS. WILLIAMS: And -MR. BRADY: If you could go around and
describe the various elevations both as to the
materials, what the design elements are you were
trying to achieve and what the colors are?

13 (Pages 46 to 49)
TAYLOR & FRIEDBERG, LLC
(973) 285-0411

Page 50
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

MS. WILLIAMS: Right. In the building
we have -- we are trying to sort of separate and
create separate identities for the two uses of the
building. So Korner Store at the front, we are
retaining the original awning and the signage to
establish a strong retail identity at the front.
The Fairchild elevation, we have a
separate identity for the residential entrance. It's
a little more residential in character with railings,
a little porch, and we have our vinyl siding material
which we are using on the upper level to tie-in to a
more residential character.
The existing Korner Store is actually
a brick structure. A lot of it has a stucco finish.
The front actually has a painted brick finish. We
are proposing to retain all of those finishes. They
are durable and they make sense at a ground plane,
especially with a tight site like where there is
parking close to the building. But we are utilizing
more residential character on the upper level, and
that's really to tie into the residential scale and
character of some of the -- a lot of the neighboring
buildings and homes in the area.
So what we are proposing is gable
roofs, pitched roofs which tie into the residential
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questions, Mr. Chairman.
QUESTIONING BY THE BOARD OF MS. WILLIAMS:
MR. OLLER: I'm actually trying to
figure out what we are calling the height of the
existing billboard.
MS. WILLIAMS: The height of what?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: The height of
existing billboard. I know we said the billboards
are 12 feet. There is a space between the billboards
and the roof. And what's the height of the existing
store building? I'm trying to add all of those
together.
MS. WILLIAMS: I don't have that on
this drawing.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Do you have the
height of existing building?
MS. WILLIAMS: I don't have it
indicated, but I believe it is around 12 and a half
feet. I believe the parapet is not a fixed height.
That's why I'm not quite certain.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: The bulk table just
says less than 35.
MS. WILLIAMS: I know that it's 10
feet 5 inches from the grade to the top of the
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character, double-hung windows with divided lights.
We have a lot of trim board, brackets and kind of
features like that that lends some character and
scale to the building. We have cross gables in a
couple of locations along the side and at the rear,
again, to break up the long roof line and add some
visual interest to the facade.
In terms of the colors, we are
utilizing the different contrasting materials to kind
of breakdown the scale, but we are also tying them
together color-wise so it reads as a whole. So we
have a light sand color proposed for the bottom
level, and a deeper version of that same color for
the upper level. So there is a lot of changes of
texture going on, but we sort of have a common color
pallet, I would say. We are picking up on the green
accents of the existing awning with our window color
and some of our door colors. And then the trim is
proposed to be a cream color. The roof would be
asphalt shingle, medium tone of kind of a grayish
brown?
MR. BRADY: And no billboards on the
roof?
MS. WILLIAMS: No billboards.
MR. BRADY: I have no further
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structure, then there is the parapet on top of that.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: So somewhere -- so
12, 12-5 and 12 for the billboards, so 24 plus
whatever the space is between the roof and the
billboard, Rusty?
MR. SCHOMMER: I guess close to 30
feet to the top of the billboard.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: So close to the
height of what you are proposing, yes?
MR. BRADY: It's a question I didn't
anticipate, Mr. Chairman, and a good one.
MS. WILLIAMS: Yes.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. Thank you.
MS. WILLIAMS: Okay.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Board Members,
questions? Mr. Woodford?
MR. WOODFORD: Where is the storm
water going to go with the new roof?
MR. BRADY: I think Mr. Schommer
should probably answer that question.
MR. SCHOMMER: What was the question?
MR. BRADY: He asked where the storm
run off was going to go from the roof.
MR. SCHOMMER: We have it directed
into leaders, into the dry well. I'm not sure who
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asked the question.
MR. WOODFORD: I did.
MR. BRADY: Currently there is no dry
well, and the storm water from the current roof just
runs onto the parking lot.
MR. SCHOMMER: Correct.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
MR. WOODFORD: That's my only
question.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Anybody else?
MR. GOLDBERG: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Mr. Goldberg.
MR. GOLDBERG: On the exterior, is the
intention of the original -- the existing building,
you referenced the stucco on the outside of the
building, to maintain that look? In walking the
property, I did notice it does need some work. Is
the intention to refinish that and reface all of that
and make that all -MS. WILLIAMS: Yes. Where it's not in
good enough condition, yes.
MR. GOLDBERG: Then on the bottom
drawing here, what I'll refer to as the alleyway
between the two stores -MS. WILLIAMS: Yes?
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intending to leave that. It projects pretty far off
of the building, and I don't know if it can be
relocated. Yes, he said, no.
MR. GOLDBERG: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Mr. Quillan?
MR. QUILLAN: I wasn't sure I
understood what you said about the stars being added
and the difficulty to get the stairs to go all the
way up to the level where the apartments would be and
what limitations there are.
MS. WILLIAMS: I'll go back. What we
need is like 17 stairs. From entering the building
we need 17 stairs to get up. The limitations are we
need a certain amount of space once you -- just to
get in the building, and in the door and stand and
close the door behind you, then get up the stairs, a
minimum landing width, you know, by the code, and
then at the top of the stairs we don't want to be
right at this doorway with a stair, because that
wouldn't be safe. So we have about 16 inches offset
of the first step.
MR. BRADY: So it's a function of how
high the risers are and how wide the treads are, plus
how big the landing areas have to be?
MS. WILLIAMS: Right, which is all
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MR. GOLDBERG: -- to me it looks like
at maybe one point in time those were windows that
were plywooded over. Can you just explain what those
are?
MS. WILLIAMS: They are recesses in
the facade. So I believe they are probably formerly
windows that have been blocked in. They didn't make
them flush. They left the vestige of the former
opening.
MR. BRADY: We are not proposing to
make them flush. Again, it's an alleyway between two
commercial buildings.
MS. WILLIAMS: Right, right. They are
probably recessed about four inches.
MR. GOLDBERG: And I don't know if
this applies to architecture, but from the use of the
building, I believe in that alleyway there is an
exhaust, I guess maybe which services the kitchen
areas downstairs. Is that correct?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes.
MR. GOLDBERG: Is that correct? It's
located right underneath one of the main residential
windows. Is that something that would be, from a
design perspective, comes into play from -MS. WILLIAMS: I think we were
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dictated by the building code. I mean, we are quite
tight everywhere on this site. I believe there is an
existing gas meter here, and this door here. So we
have really tried to fit the site as well as we can
to get up to this second floor (indicating).
MR. QUILLAN: Well, is that an
explanation as to why you needed to extend that extra
piece of building, that new piece two feet out, like
the overhang?
MS. WILLIAMS: Yes, yes, yes.
MR. QUILLAN: If the door, the
service door moved around to the other side of the
building just around the corner, would that alleviate
the problem? Would you be allowed then to move that
entire structure -MS. WILLIAMS: Well, we were trying to
represent that there is an existing gas meter right
here. I don't see it on my plan, but that's what's
limiting the face of this porch. So it's a gas
service that is entering the building right there
(indicating).
MR. QUILLAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Anyone else?
MR. GOLDBERG: I just have a follow-up
question. You mentioned gas service. I don't see
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anywhere on the drawings, maybe they are not called
to be on the drawings, for a furnace or a closet for
heat or a furnace.
MS. WILLIAMS: We have a lot of attic
space because of our roof. We have an 8 to 12 pitch
so we have attic space that we can have equipment in,
and then there is a full basement under the Korner
Store where they have their equipment.
MR. GOLDBERG: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Anybody else? Board
professionals? Mr. Slate?
MR. WILLIAMS: Well, I have a
question. Is there any additional lighting on the
side of the building?
MS. WILLIAMS: On the outside of the
building? We would probably have a ceiling fixture
on the porch to light that entrance.
MR. WILLIAMS: But nothing on that
side, the north side?
MS. WILLIAMS: There are two lights
shown on the Fairchild side, and one shown on the
back for the parking area to the rear.
MR. WILLIAMS: Okay.
MR. BRADY: I think Mr. Schommer
indicated they would be shielded lights, LED type.
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in various states of repair. The idea is it's all
going to be painted stucco along the side. If that's
plywood now, I think the intention is it would be
stuccoed so it's a consistent finish and so it
doesn't look like a bordered up building.
MR. SLATE: That's what I was hoping
to hear. Do you know, I see right now there is an
existing overhead service. Do you know if the
service is going to need to be upgraded? And I guess
my follow-up on that: If new electrical service is
required, is the Applicant willing to put that
underground rather than having an overhead service?
MS. WILLIAMS: I don't know the answer
to whether the service will need to be upgraded. I
see that they are conferring, the engineer.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes, Mr. Brady.
MR. BRADY: After talking with
Mr. Schommer and Mr. Maietta, if we have to upgrade
it and we have to run wires and all of that, we will
run them underground.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay, thank you.
MR. SLATE: And I guess the last
question I have for the architect, are you familiar
with the existing garage and the condition of the
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So they are very controlled.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Mr. Slate?
MR. SLATE: A follow-up on that
lighting question. Your fixtures are much more
attractive than the ones that Mr. Schommer is
showing. Is it possible to make sure that we have
that? No offense. The engineer has practical,
box-type fixture. The architect is showing a much
nicer picture. Will the Applicant stipulate that if
there is an approval, that they would do an
architectural type fixture.
MR. BRADY: That's fine. We will do a
decorative-type of fixture in consultation with
Mr. Slate or Mr. Phillips, or whoever is more
aesthetic or less practical.
MR. SLATE: And as a follow-up to
Mr. Goldberg's question, I did not look at the area
through the alleyway, but are some of those windows
covered with plywood, or would they be finished with
a stucco finish to be somewhat similar? And once the
stucco repairs are completed on the Fairchild side of
the building, is it painted then to give it the
color? I'm assuming that's the case, but I guess
somehow I'll form that into a question.
MS. WILLIAMS: It's all painted stucco
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garage?
MS. WILLIAMS: We did not really focus
on that.
MR. SLATE: Okay. If it's in need of
repairs, I guess this goes back to the Applicant, you
know, if it needs a coat of paint or some sort of
repairs, the Applicant will clean that up?
MR. BRADY: A coat of paint is easy,
Mr. Slate. I'm not sure what to commit to beyond
that, though.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: And the coat of
paint should be in keeping with the color scheme that
is proposed for the building, as well?
MR. SLATE: That makes sense.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: And probably also the
same color scheme for the dumpster and the recycling
enclosure?
MR. BRADY: That's fine.
MR. SLATE: I have no further
questions.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Phillips?
MR. PHILLIPS: Can we go back to the
rendering?
MR. BRADY: Sure.
MR. PHILLIPS: So I'm looking, let's
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take the Fairchild Avenue frontage.
MS. WILLIAMS: Yes.
MR. PHILLIPS: And I guess I'm just
dealing with the disconnect between the first and the
second floor, and I get that you know the first floor
is built. I get that there is no fenestration on the
first floor. But I'm just having issues, and I don't
know what the solution is, to be honest, with the
disconnect adding the residential story, which
clearly has a residential feel, you know, there is a
roof line. And I get what you are trying to do with
the colored differences. I don't know what else you
could do to dress up that portion of the facade. And
I just throw that out as a question, because I'm sort
of -- my aesthetic sensibilities are just kind of
grappling with that, although I understand the
dilemma from a practical standpoint. So I just, as
an architect, is there anything else that you feel
that you could have done to dress up that facade on
the first floor now that you have the second floor
facade, which has a residential feel and look and
materials and so forth?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Looks like we need a
window right in the middle of the other two, but
that's where the dividing wall is.
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also have the relief from the brackets that jut
forward.
MR. PHILLIPS: Maybe it's just the
lack of fenestration and richness of detail, but I
understand why you designed it the way you designed
it, and what you have attempted to do to kind of
address it. But it's still -- that first floor
relative to the second floor is stark. That's all I
have on that.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: We need fake recessed
windows like on the other side.
MR. PHILLIPS: I don't think so. As
Im thinking about it, is there any way to articulate
it, but I don't think that will pull it off. So
maybe this is the only solution. I just throw it out
there for the Board and the Applicant's expert.
That's all. Do you have any ideas, Jim?
MR. SLATE: No. I mean, I think if
the stucco is redone and it's a uniform color, it's
going to go a long why to help clean it up. And if
there are cars, that helps to break it up.
MR. PHILLIPS: I agree. That's all I
have.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. Okay, at this
time I'll open it up to members of the public for
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MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.
MS. WILLIAMS: I guess my response to
that would be -MR. PHILLIPS: And I don't if any of
the other Board Members feel that way.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: No, no, I definitely
saw what you are talking about.
MS. WILLIAMS: We are trying to tie
them together with color, but maintain a difference
in texture. But this type of separation of the
stories is kind of historical for homes built in the
'30s and '20's. It's kind of consistent with the age
of the neighborhood that surrounds. You see it a
lot. I think the trim board helps a lot, and I think
the brackets actually help a lot.
The thing you have to remember is,
when cars are parked there, you are not going to see
the bottom half of that wall.
MR. PHILLIPS: I was thinking of that.
Believe me, I was thinking of that.
MS. WILLIAMS: So that's kind of why a
lot of the attention has been put on the upper part
of the building. It's kind of wasted on the lower
part if it's all blocked by cars. So you will get a
strong shadow where the overhang occurs. It will
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questions. Questions only of the architect. Any
questions, please come forward. Seeing none, hearing
none, I close the public portion.
MR. BRADY: Thank you, Lynn.
Mr. Chairman, that brings me to my last witness,
which is Ken Nelson, our planner.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay.
MR. OLLER: Mr. Nelson, would you
raise your right hand?
K E N N E T H N E L S O N,
Having been duly sworn, testified under oath as
follows:
MR. OLLER: State your full name for
the record, please.
MR. NELSON: Kenneth Nelson.
MR. OLLER: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: The Board can
stipulate to Mr. Nelson's qualifications. He's been
accepted by this Board on numerous occasions.
MR. BRADY: As a planner?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: As a planner, yes.
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. BRADY:
MR. BRADY: Mr. Nelson, I have a
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microphone.
MR. NELSON: I'll probably sit right
here.
MR. BRADY: Okay. First, Mr. Nelson,
would you indicate to the Board your familiarity with
the Town's master plan, the Town's zoning ordinance,
this application, this site and this neighborhood?
MR. NELSON: Yes. I've visited the
site and the neighborhood on several occasions. I
reviewed the 1994 master plan and the 2017 master
plan re-examination report. I'm familiar with the
requirements of the B-11 zone, and I reviewed
Mr. Phillips' report.
MR. BRADY: And you sat here tonight
and listened to the testimony?
MR. NELSON: Yes, I did.
MR. BRADY: If you could then, could
you describe the existing conditions, starting with
the district it's in and the districts near the
property, also?
MR. NELSON: Yes. I think given the
lateness of the hour, and the thoroughness of the
previous witnesses, and Mr. Phillips' report, I think
I can abbreviate my report somewhat in terms of not
repeating a lot of what has already been mentioned.
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Mr. Chairman, here are all of the
copies Mr. Nelson gave me.
Okay, we've marked four sheets of
pictures, which contain seven pictures total. And
Mr. Nelson, could you tell the Board what that is,
what it shows?
MR. NELSON: The first picture shows
the subject property with the billboards. That's
taken from Fairchild. The second sheet has two
photographs. One shows a portion of the residential
area on the west side of Fairchild, and the bottom
pictures shows the B-11 zone on the south side of
Burnham. The third page has two photographs; the
top, which has the firehouse on the corner of Burnham
and Fairchild, the bottom photograph shows the B-11
zone and the commercial uses on the south side of
Burnham.
The last picture shows the front of
the property. The last page shows the front of the
property on the top picture and the rear of the
property on the bottom picture.
MR. OLLER: Just for the record, I
think our set might be in a different order than
that. At least mine is.
MR. NELSON: I'm sorry.
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But the property is in a small B-11 district. There
are several of them throughout the municipality;
generally small in size, and that's true of this one.
I have a series of photographs that we
can distribute to the Board Members.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
MR. NELSON: I have a series of
photographs that show the neighborhood and the site
which supplements the photographs that were
previously -MR. OLLER: Dave, is that a packet?
One number then?
MR. BRADY: It's a packet. It
consists of four pages with -MR. NELSON: Each photograph is
labeled as to what it is.
MR. BRADY: -- seven pictures. I'll
mark it as A-5 with today's date.
(Exhibit A-5, Four-Paged Packet Containing
Seven Photographs, is received and marked as an
exhibit.)
MR. OLLER: I'm sorry, four sheets.
MR. BRADY: One, two, three, four
sheets, yes.
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MR. OLLER: But they are all still
there.
MR. NELSON: The property in the B-11
shown is surrounded by the R-7 zone, which is
single-family residential. I might point out
something that I found interesting. I'm not sure
that it relates directly to this application, but the
B-11 zone allows all conditional uses permitted in
any residential zone. And one of the conditional
uses in the R-7 is what is referred to as a
supplementary apartment. So there are supplementary
apartments allowed in the adjoining residential area.
And what we are proposing is a
residential component that would have two units. So
in theory, some of the single-family homes in the R-7
zone could also have two units within them.
The property is in very close
proximity to Morris Plains. It is also in close
proximity to Hanover Avenue, and the billboards are
visible from Hanover Avenue. The zoning basically
reflects what the existing land development pattern
is in the area. The property is undersized. It's a
corner lot. The current use is essentially a
neighborhood store. It's been there for many
decades, and basically the thrust of this application
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is to bring this property, the building, the site,
from the 1960's into the 21 century.
The existing commercial use is not a
high intensity use. It's a lot of quick, in-and-out
traffic. And as has been discussed, the parking both
for the existing commercial use and the proposed
apartments can be easily accommodated on the site.
The proposal, which seeks to add two,
two-bedroom apartments is actually very much in
keeping with something that is mentioned in your most
recent master plan re-examination report. And if I
could just summarize part of it and read the last
sentence verbatim? It's on page 45 of the
re-examination report under the heading, "Changes in
Housing Preference." It gets into the Baby Boomer
demographic and the Millennial demographic, and how
they are trending away from traditional, large lots,
single family housing. It indicates that a variety
of housing types are also being built as part of new,
mixed-use developments in order to respond to this
trend. And the last two sentences actually read:
"Although the Planning Board
anticipates that the Township will remain a
predominantly single-family, detached-home community,
it must still be cognizant of these changing housing
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variance or not, but it certainly improves a
deficiency if it does exist.
So with respect to the D-l variance,
the usual argument to be made is that the proposal
advances the purposes of zoning, or at least one
purpose of zoning. And in my opinion, there are four
that are specifically advanced. I would argue that
the site is particularly suited to accommodate these
two apartments. It's a one-story building. The
apartments can be accommodated by a vertical
expansion, although there is a small increase in the
footprint of the building, basically the proposal is
a vertical expansion of the building. And also the
location makes this property particularly suited for
the use, because it is immediately adjacent to a
single-family, residential area that, as I said, can
accommodate a second apartment if a property owner so
chooses. So these two apartments are consistent with
what is happening in that R-7 zone. It's also a
convenient location for someone that wants to live in
a small residential building, but be in the location
where they can access mass transit and various
commercial facilities. So in that regard, this
property is particularly suited for the use.
It also allows for population density.
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preferences. As such, it should look for
opportunities to promote diversity in the Township's
housing stock where appropriate." This is a very
small project. It doesn't make much of a dent in
providing a variety of housing types, but in my
opinion, it's right on track with what is mentioned
in your re-examination report.
Let me get to the statutory tests,
because that's obviously the most important part of
my testimony. But before I do that, let me mention
one thing. This building is an attractive building.
I understand Mr. Phillips' concerns about the facade,
but it's a major improvement over what is there. In
particular, I think the two overhangs actually add an
attractive feature to the building, so that it isn't
just a straight wall up and down. And I think the
brackets also add to the architectural interest of
the building. And of course, those overhangs create
a deficiency, a variance that I have to address in my
testimony. I should say that usually C variances are
subsumed in the D variance, but I wanted to point out
that issue of the overhangs, which I think is an
important factor. And from what I understand, we've
eliminated one variance in terms of the coverage.
I'm not sure if moving the dumpster eliminates that
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The two apartments are modest in size and are
consistent with what is located in the surrounding
area. This proposal also provides sufficient space
in an appropriate location for this niche-type of
residential use. And finally, and maybe most
importantly, as a result of this application the
purpose of zoning relating to enhancing the desirable
visual environment, or creating a desirable visual
environment is certainly achieved here, not only by
the design of the building, but most importantly by
the removal of the billboards.
So the C variances, as I said, are
essentially subsumed in the D variance. But if they
weren't, my argument would be that the flexible C
provision applies to the variances that are needed,
because those variances need to be approved in order
to make this project happen.
Finally, in terms of the negative
criteria test, I see very little, if any, impact
associated with this project. I think the impacts
are primarily positive. There may be some light
increase in traffic as a result of adding the two
apartments, but that increase would be minimal.
Furthermore, I would argue that the intent and
purpose of the master plan and zone plan is not
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impaired for the reasons I've stated in connection
with providing an appropriate type of residential use
at this location.
And with respect to the Medici test, I
suspect, although I don't know, the fact that the
B-11 zone is such a small zone throughout the
municipality, I doubt that the Planning Board or the
Council has given a lot of thought to it, or if they
have, maybe the thinking is that if there is going to
be residential added in the zones, that it would be
better to do it via the variance process.
So that concludes my testimony, unless
Mr. Brady has -MR. BRADY: There would be no
substantial detriment to the public good or general
welfare?
MR. NELSON: Yes, definitely, there is
no substantial detriment to the public good and the
adjoining properties as a result of this proposal.
MR. BRADY: I have nothing further,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Thank you. Board
Members, any questions? Mr. Woodford, speak.
QUESTIONING BY THE BOARD OF MR. NELSON:
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MR. QUILLAN: 1970's maybe?
MR. PHILLIPS: '60's.
MR. BRADY: I'll represent,
Mr. Quillan, Mr. Maietta just informed me that those
billboards were there in 1966 when his parents took
over.
MR. OLLER: And they were already
there.
MR. BRADY: They were already there.
MR. OLLER: The Planning Act is like
1959, so -- and the first zoning ordinance in this
town followed shortly thereafter, if I remember
right. So sometime in the '60's. So it would seem
that those were -- they preexisted any zoning in
town.
MR. BRADY: As a pre-existing use and
structure, they are grandfathered, in layman's terms,
and get to remain.
MR. QUILLAN: All right. That was my
only question. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Anybody else? Board
professionals? Mr. Slate?
MR. SLATE: No questions.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Mr. Phillips?
MR. PHILLIPS: I just have a couple.
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MR. WOODFORD: Did you take any kind
of survey to see how many multi-families are within a
one-block radius of this property?
MR. NELSON: No, I didn't.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Mr. Quillan?
MR. QUILLAN: I have a question about
the billboards. They were described earlier on as
pre-existing nonconforming. I'm not sure that I know
what that means, and I'm not sure whether my question
is better for you or for the Township professionals.
But why are they there if they are not conforming, I
guess?
MR. NELSON: I don't know the history
of it. They may have preexisted zoning. I don't
know.
MR. OLLER: Basically, if it's a
pre-existing nonconforming, in most cases it predated
the current zone plan.
MR. QUILLAN: When was the current
zone plan put in place? Do you know? Does anyone
know?
MR. SLATE: No.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: That long ago.
MR. OLLER: In increments. I don't
remember the specific dates.
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Ken, I want to understand the testimony. You were
talking, and I thought you were indicating that the
two families proposed here would be consistent with
the surrounding area. And I know there is a question
that was just asked about how many two families, and
the surrounding area is are RA-7. The RA-7 is a
single-family zone. I just want to make sure that I
understood your testimony. Are you saying there are
two-family around it, and they may be nonconforming,
or -MR. NELSON: Well, according to my
understanding of the ordinance, the R-7 allows for
supplementary apartments. So in theory, I don't know
if any exist, but there could be two-family, or there
could be structures with two units in them in that
neighborhood.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay. But you will
acknowledge that the RA-7 is a single-family -MR. NELSON: Predominantly, yes.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay. Just so I
understand. And the other question is: In terms of
the planning proofs, how much weight would you give
to the elimination of the nonconforming billboards,
because -MR. NELSON: Yes, I would give a
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substantial amount of weight to that. In fact, maybe
it should have been the first one that I mentioned.
MR. PHILLIPS: Okay. That's all I
have.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Chairman, I don't know
if it would be helpful to have Mr. Maietta come up,
but he said that there are four or five two-family
residences in the surrounding area that he knows, so.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Mr. Nelson, do you
need that additional testimony on the record, or -MR. NELSON: It probably wouldn't
hurt.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Maietta, are you
familiar with the surrounding land uses?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes.
MR. BRADY: And to your knowledge, are
there any two-family houses in the immediate
vicinity?
MR. MAIETTA: Yes, there is about four
or five.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. If there is no
more questions from the Board, I'll open this up to
members of public. Anybody in the public with any
questions for the planner please come forward at this
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putting up two modest, market-rate units, providing a
diversity of housing stock, which is a trend lately
to have. Going back to the old style where you have
residential above and commercial below. This
reflects that trend. It's going to be apartments
that are, as I say, modest, market-rate units, close
to downtown Morris Plains, close to some of the
amenities that you have there. There is walkability
and all of that that people talk about nowadays
applies to these. You will have a significant
upgrade in the aesthetics of this building, something
that is compatible with the surrounding areas. I
think, as I said, I'm not going to go through each
analysis, but I think as a whole, this is an
improvement to the area, an improvement to the Town,
provides additional housing stock for the Town, and I
would ask that the Board approve it.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Thank you.
Mr. Oller, do you have any conditions
that were discussed during the application?
MR. OLLER: We did discuss a few.
MR. SLATE: You know what, I just
wanted to note one other thing from the exhibits.
MR. OLLER: Yes?
MR. SLATE: Exhibit A-5, it looks like

Page 79
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

time. Seeing none, hearing none, I close the public
portion. And if you want me to, I'll open up for
comments.
MR. BRADY: That's fine.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. At this time
I'll open it back up to the public for any comments,
so not just questions, but any comments, testimony,
opinions, please come forward. Seeing none, hearing
none, I close the public portion.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Chairman, I'll sum up
quickly. I know you have another hearing you would
like to get to. I'm not going to go through it, as I
would if I was briefing something and explore every
rationale for every variance. I'll lump it all into
one thing, which is we currently have a nondescript
block, commercial-looking building. While it's in a
commercial zone, it's immediately adjacent to
residential zones. It has on top of it two large
billboards. I was looking at A-5, and looking at the
square footage of the billboards and the square
footage of the side of the building, and it's
probably over half of the size of the half of that
building. Billboards next to a residential zone like
this are something, I'm sure, that the Township would
like to discourage. We are removing them. We are
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a vending machine is in the back, Pepsi vending
machine in the back on the Fairchild side, and there
is also -- I don't know if it's a clothing collection
box or something, but I'm just wondering if the
Applicant is willing to a condition if the Board is
to look favorably on this application, that no
outside, you know, vending machines or storage of
materials on the property.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Maietta indicated the
vending machine is already gone, and it will remain
gone.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: That's good.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Maietta said some of
the people in the area use it, and it goes to a good
cause, but if the Board wants it to be removed from
the site, there is no objection.
MR. SLATE: I'm not going to be the
one to get rid of a donation box. If the Board
wants -CHAIRMAN KRONK: You can move it to
the Fire Department.
MR. SLATE: Move it to the Fire
Department.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes. You have the
space there.
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MR. SLATE: Then we will have to come
to the Board to get approval.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: We'll throw a
variance on it. Okay, Mr. Oller, we are going over
conditions.
MR. OLLER: Conditions, yes. We need
the variance list on sheet three to be updated. All
right? Okay, we are eliminating the pavement along
the east side of the garage, so as to eliminate the
impervious coverage variance. And we discussed
relocating the dumpster to an area closer to the
garage, but I don't think we actually came up with a
location. Are we leaving that to Mr. Slate's
judgment on the resubmittal?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: I think it was my
understanding that the engineer needed to explore the
relocation and the parking to determine where it
could go.
MR. BRADY: Right.
MR. OLLER: So we will do that, and
then on resubmittal leave it to the Township
Engineer's satisfaction.
MR. BRADY: That's good.
MR. OLLER: The garage will not be
used for residential use. We are reserving the two

Page 84
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

MR. BRADY: That actually was all I
had, also. I was checking them off as we went.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Maybe we can add one
more. That's to have the architect review the
aesthetics of the Fairchild Avenue side as
recommended by Mr. Phillips?
MR. SLATE: Just an issue that Paul
and I discussed to bring up to the Board. From
Mr. Nelson's exhibit, we did see that the parapet
wall appears to be about two feet tall. So I imagine
that parapet has to come down. So the size of that
wall, as you are looking at it, comes down, you know,
it looks like two feet. Maybe the architect, if we
need clarification on that, can provide
clarification. But the size of that wall as it
exists is going to be reduced by, you know, a couple
of feet because the parapet wall, you know. That's
my understanding the way the construction would go.
You are not going to build off of that parapet wall.
So that kind of reduces the scale of that, you know,
existing wall that faces Fairchild Avenue.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. I still think,
you know, I still agree that that facade is a little
blank. It might be something as simple as maybe, you
know, making the band wider or brackets bigger or
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parking spaces in front of the garage for residential
parking with appropriate signage. Again, the light
fixtures will be modified to reflect something more
similar -CHAIRMAN KRONK: To the architect's
plan.
MR. OLLER: -- to what's on the
architect's plan. If the electrical service needs to
be upgraded, then the new service will be run
underground. The garage will be repainted to the
same color scheme as the building. The dumpster
enclosure will also be a color, to the same color
scheme as the building. And that was all. Removing
all exterior vending machines, if there are any. We
are not requiring the removal of the donation box,
though. Is that right?
MR. BRADY: Mr. Schommer indicated
there should probably be a wood fence around the
dumpster, and it might be pressure treated. Is that
required to be painted then?
MR. OLLER: It would just be a
pressure-treated wood dumpster, and you'll show a
spec on resubmittal.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
MR. OLLER: That's all I had.
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something. I don't know. Just take a look at it and
see what you can come up with.
MR. BRADY: There is no objection to,
I guess, any issue or any alternatives by Mr. Slate
and Mr. Phillips.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: That sounds good to
me.
MR. PHILLIPS: That works.
MR. SLATE: Just as one other note
that I had is the Township has an affordable housing
contribution requirement. It's all over the state,
but, you know, obviously that's a standard condition
in our resolutions, so the Applicant should be aware
of that.
MR. BRADY: Okay.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Do we need any
documentation regarding the parking spaces in the
right-of-way or is it -MR. SLATE: I defer to Mr. Oller.
MR. OLLER: I don't think so. It's a
long-standing, pre-existing condition in the street
where you can otherwise park.
MR. BRADY: Actually, if you look at
A-5, across the street it's the exact same condition.
MR. OLLER: We noticed.
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MR. BRADY: For the dry cleaner,
Mr. Chairman.
MR. GOLDBERG: Mr. Chairman, can I ask
one more follow-up question from Mr. Phillips' TCC
report. There was a recommendation that they drop
Belgium block curbing along the whole Fairchild
frontage. I didn't hear any mention or discussion of
that. Is that something or -MR. MAIETTA: It's on the plans.
MR. GOLDBERG: It's on the plans to do
that. And so right now you can, on the Fairchild
side you can pull in and park. With that Belgium
block you will not pull in and park.
MR. BRADY: So you would be, but it
would delineate kind of the traveled way from the
parking area.
MR. SLATE: So it's depressed curb.
Basically, it wasn't finished by us, and we are
requiring the Applicant to finish it the rest of the
way.
MR. GOLDBERG: Thank you for
clarifying that. One other item I forgot to mention
earlier was, there seems to be an oversized satellite
dish on the rear of building. Is that intending to
stay or go back on the top of the new structure, or
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MR. GOLDBERG: Thank you. And then my
final comment, having walked the property, when you
first come upon the property, especially in the rear,
it's overwhelming in terms of trying to delineate on
which site, what belongs to which building; the
liquor store, then to the right is a private
residence there. The photo that's provided here to
the rear of the property, I would say that's not
really an indicator of what's actually there right
now. There is a number of large items; an old
landscaping trailer. I was not aware that the
Applicant actually owns the property next door. So
can we just get some intention of that debris field
that is sort of there right now, with the trailer and
all of the stuff, is that intended to be moved next
door or taken off.
MR. BRADY: No. As part of the site
improvements here we are going to get that back
organized per, whatever exhibit it was that
Mr. Schommer was showing. So we will have delineated
parking. We will have a place for the dumpster.
MR. GOLDBERG: Correct.
MR. BRADY: We have parking for the
residents, and they will have to be able to get to
that parking and not have something in the way. So
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is that coming down and being removed, also?
MR. BRADY: That's the lottery dish,
so you need that to sell lottery tickets.
MR. GOLDBERG: Will that go on the
roof? That's a fairly large dish. Will that go on
the roof of the structure?
MR. BRADY: We haven't thought that
through, Mr. Goldberg, where that goes. It needs to
be there.
MR. GOLDBERG: If you need to continue
to sell lottery tickets it needs to be somewhere, but
a dish of that size on top of this structure would
stand out as obtuse, in my opinion. I don't believe
it's visible in any of the photos.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Yes, barely. On the
rear property photo you can see part of it.
MR. BRADY: Mr. Chairman, can we have
a condition that we'll review that with Mr. Slate and
Mr. Phillips to ascertain the best location on the
building of where to put that?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: I think that's fine.
MR. SLATE: It looks like there is
some roof lines in that back corner. We can keep it
behind the ridge line and it will not be that
visible.
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that gets all cleaned up as part of the general
cleanup of the site.
MR. SLATE: And our condition, I
think, on the removal of the vending machine that's
gone already, will basically also include no outdoor
storage of materials.
MR. BRADY: That's why we have a
garage.
MR. GOLDBERG: Thank you.
MR. WOODFORD: Did we have any
discussion about what the buffer between the two
property lines, what it will consist of? You said
shrubbery. Shall we leave that to Mr. Slate's good
judgment?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: He loves landscaping
conditions.
MR. BRADY: The details are on the
plan, Mr. Woodford, as to what the shrubs are.
MR. WOODFORD: Okay, thank you. My
next comment would be, we didn't discuss anything
about dumpster pickup hours. Can we talk about that?
CHAIRMAN KRONK: I guess we didn't
discuss it.
MR. BRADY: No, we didn't. Mr.
Maietta, why don't you come up for a minute?
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MR. MAIETTA: That's good.
MR. BRADY: Currently, how often does
the dumpster get picked up?
MR. MAIETTA: Once a week, usually
Tuesday morning.
MR. BRADY: Do you see any reason to
change that?
MR. MAIETTA: No. It's a no. I'm
sorry.
MR. BRADY: Okay. That's it, unless
the Board has a particular concern. We just continue
to pick it up on that day, as long as it's okay with
the hauler or whatever day.
MR. WOODFORD: You say early in the
morning?
MR. MAIETTA: I think he's there like
five o'clock, six o'clock.
MR. WOODFORD: So the residents above
there, they will be collecting garbage -MR. BRADY: It's in a B-11 zone. I
mean, it's a commercial. You would expect -MR. WOODFORD: Right, right, but you
are asking for residents there -- so that's -trucks come down my street about 5:45, so I think we
are good.
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approved. It will be memorialized at the meeting
next month.
MR. BRADY: Thank you very much.
MR. OLLER: As long as I get the
transcript.
(The Application is adjourned.)
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MR. BRADY: I think anything goes down
there now. In my town they come around five-thirty.
MR. WOODFORD: Okay. We'll leave it.
I'm good with that.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: You are good?
MR. WOODFORD: I am good.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Okay. If there is no
more discussions on conditions, I'll accept a motion
at this time.
MR. WILLIAMS: I would like to make a
motion that we accept and approve this application
based upon the conditions set forth by Mr. Oller.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Thank you,
Mr. Williams. Do we have a second?
MR. STAUDT: I second that.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Thank you, Mr.
Staudt. Ms. Mantek, can we have a roll call, please?
(At this point in the proceedings
there is a roll call taken with Members, Mr.
Goldberg, Mr. Quillan, Mr. Williams, Mr. Woodford,
Mr. Staudt, Mr. Christensen and Chairman Kronk voting
in favor of the motion to approve the Application
with the previously stated conditions.)
MS. MANTEK: Approved.
CHAIRMAN KRONK: Your application is
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